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VISION

The vision of the RICB is to be the Premier Financial Service
provider in the country and beyond, securing the ever evolving
aspirations of society

MISSION

We offer premier insurance, credit, and other social security
services, delivering personalized services at affordable cost by
professional employees through comprehensive network. We
strive to enhance mutually beneficial relationship to satisfy our
stakeholders

CORE VALUES
Transparency : Openness is our name
Accountability : Honouring our responsibility
Commitment : Delivering our promises
Team Work : United we stand
Integrity : Playing by the rules
Creativity : New day, new ideas

Specialization : Pursuing greater heights







CONTENTS

Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited

DIreCtOrS' REPOTT ...ttt ettt et e e et e e eetee s s saeeennbaeeenabeeeennsaeanns 3
AUAITOTS' REPOTT ...ttt ettt sttt st s e b s eas 9
Balance Sheet-Consolidated ..........cooouiiiiriiiiiiiiiieeiee et 24
Life BalancCe SNEEL .....ccoviuiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e s e 25
Group Insurance Saving Balance Sheet ............ooviiiiiiiiiiiniiiiieeeeeeeeeen 26
General Insurance Balance Sheet..........coocviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 27
Credit & Investment Balance Sheet.........coocuiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiee e 28
Profit & Loss Account-Consolidated ...........coouiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieecie e 29
Life Insurance Revenue ACCOUNT ........c..uiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeriiieeeeeieeee e eeiree e e e ertre e e e e serreeesesnneees 30
Group Insurance Saving Revenue ACCOUNL ..........cc.eeviiiiiiriiieiiiieeeiee e 31
General Insurance ReVenue ACCOUNT ..........ceviiiiieiiieeiiie et eeieeeeree e tee et eeeaeeeeaaee s 32
Credit & Investment Revenue ACCOUNL ........cc.eiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 33
Cash FIOW StatemMeNT .......ceeeviiieiiieeeiieeeeiieeeeiee e eteeeetteesstteeesebeeessaeeessaeeesnsaeesnseaesnsseens 34
Schedule attached to and forming part of the Accounts ........c...ccoceerviiniiiniiiniiennienneens 35
Significant Accounting POIICIES .........eiieiiiiiiiiiieiiie et 43
INOLE ONl ACCOUNLES ....vveeeieiiiiieeeeeiiitee e ettt e e e ettt e e e ettt e e e esaabaeeeeesstbaeeeessnssaeeeeesnnsseeesennseees 48

Private Provident Fund

AUAITOTS' REPOTT ...ttt e 57
Balance SHEET.........oiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee ettt 59
REVENUE ACCOUNL ...ttt ettt e e et e et e st eeeaeee s 60
Schedule attached to and forming part of the ACCOUNLS ........cccueeeriiiiiriiiiiiiiieeeiieeeieeae 61
Significant Accounting Policies and Note to0 ACCOUNES.........ccccuveeeriieeriiieeeriieeeieeeeiieeenes 65

RICB Securities Limited

DITECtOrs' REPOTT ...couiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeecee ettt e e 66
AUAIOTS' REPOTT ettt ettt s e et e e st e e e s nbaeeenbeeeennneeas 70
Balance SNEET........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicc s 76
Profit & LOSS ACCOUNL........ocuiiiiiiiiiiiiici e 77
Cash FIOW SEat@IMENLt .......cc.ceviiriiriiiieiieeieeteeteete ettt s s 78
Schedule attached to and forming part of the Accounts ............ccoceeriiiriiiniiiniicnnienneens 79

Significant Accounting Policies and Note to ACCOUNES.........ccccueeerrivieeriiieeeriieeeieeeeiiee e 84

[10T LIOdHY TVANNY

"ALTNVLNHE 4O NOLLVIOd YOI HONVINSNI TVAOY



"ALTNVLNHY 40 NOLLVIOd 0D HONVINSNI TVAOY
110T L4Oddd TVNANNY



ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
Directors’ Report for the Year 2011

To the Members:

On behalf of the Board of Ditectors and on my own behalf, I am pleased to
present the 37t Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended 315t December 2011.

Operational & Performance Highlights

Financial Year 2011 was yet another year of impressive growth with record profit
before tax of Nu. 450.94 million (Nu. 300.19 million profit before tax in the
ptrevious yeat). The total direct business posted to Nu. 1,519.86 million with the
growth of 35.85% compared to Nu. 1,118.71 mullion in the previous year. The
Investment Business contributed Nu. 644.45 million followed by General
Insurance Business by Nu. 618.79 million, and the remaining contribution of Nu.
256.62 million registered from Life Insurance and GIS business.

The total business achieved from the insurance sector (General, Life & Group
Insurance) is Nu. 875.41 million and the net premium after affecting the re-
insurance premiums posted Nu. 577.13 million. Correspondingly, the gross claims
amounted to Nu. 482.58 million and the net claims after considering reinsurance
recoveries posted Nu 189.44 million. The overall net claim ratio during the

financial year 2011 stands at 32.82 % compared to 43.21% in the previous year.

The overall underwriting insurance net revenue posted Nu.191.97 million
compared to Nu.150.24 million during the last financial year, which is transferred
to the Profit and Loss Account of the Corporation. The investment business
continues to contribute substantially to the overall performance of the company.
The gross interest earned for the year posted to Nu 644.45 million with the
growth of 39.14 % and the net interest earned after suspending the interest in line

with the RMA prudential regulation 2002 posted to Nu.623.96 million.

3
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

Business Income for the Period ended 31.12.2011

Figures in (Nu.
Million) Premium Claims
Particulars GI—O.SS Reinsurance Ne.t Gro.ss Reinsurance Ne?t
Premium Premium Claim Claim
Fire , 234.45 136.92 97.52 160.54 12373 36.81
Miscellaneous 370.07 149.51 220.56 278.06 166.12 111.93
Matine 14.26 11.14 3.13 1.91 3.28 1.37
A | General Insurance 618.79 297.57 321.22 440.51 293.14 147.37
B | Life Insurance 222.89 0.71 222.18 27.17 - 27.17
C | GIS & GISL 33.73 - 33.73 14.90 - 14.90
Total = (A+B+C) 875.41 298.28 577.13 482.58 293.14 189.44
D | Investment Ir(l}ttaorisst Interest Itll\tT:rte-st Interest ¥nterest. Further
Earned Suspense Earned Expenses | Differential | Provs.
644.45 20.49 623.96 369.15 305.41 10.98
(A+B+C+D) Total Business 1,519.86
Financial Performance for the year 2010-2011
Variance
Z
Income
General Insurance 186.19 150.24 23.93
Investment (Net) 291.34 175.76 65.76
Life (Surplus) 2.78 - 100.00
Other 6.62 6.23 6.43
Total: (D 486.93 290.12 46.57
Expenses
Deprecation 13.54 11.45 8.63
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 3.57 3.92 (52.49)
Other Expenses 18.89 16.66 65.28
Total: (1) 36.00 32.04 10.98
Profit Before Tax (1) - (1I) 450.93 30019 | s0.22
Profit After Tax 315.57 210.13 50.22 ;
Earning Per Share 13152 87.56 | 5020
Book Value Per Share 509.38 406.01 25.46
Net-worth of the Company ) 1,222.52 974.42 » 25.46
Return on Core Equity | L 131.52% 87.56% | -




It is significant to note that the Investment Department continues to conttibute
substantially to the revenue of the corporation with Nu. 291.34 million (59.83%),
followed by the General Insutance Department with Nu.186.19 million (38.24%),
the remaining contribution is from other miscellaneous sources.

The earnings per share of the Company during the year have posted to Nu.131.52
vis-a-vis Nu. 87.50, in the last financial year. The net worth of the company as on
31.12.2011 posted at Nu. 1,222.52 million compared to Nu. 974.42 million in the
last financial year and the book value per share translate to Nu.509.38 compared
to Nu. 406.01 during the last financial year. The return to cote equity posted
131.52% compated to 87.56% during the last financial year.

Based on the profitability and considetring the fund position, the Board has
recommended a dividend to the Shareholders at 30% of the face value of share

(Nu.30 per share) vis-a-vis 25% (INu. 25 per share) in the previous year.

Performance Highlights (Gross Profit) from 2007 - 2011

Nu. in o
Year Million Yo
2007 151.91 15.94%
2008 170.37 12.15%
2009 261.27 | 53.35%
2010 300.19 14.90%

2011 450.94 | 30.22%

The company continues to perform consistently y-o-y with the average growth of

profit (before tax) at 29.16 % in the last five years.
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

Financial Position of the Company

The total asset of the company has increased by 16.07 % to Nu. 6.77 billion
during the year compared to Nu. 5.84 billion in the previous financial year. It is
significant to note that for the first time, RICB’s net worth has surpassed a billion
ngultrum to Nu. 1.22 billion, an increase by about 25.46% from the previous year
of Nu. 0.97 billion.

The net fund balance has increased to Nu.4.97 billion from Nu. 4.35 billion in the
previous yeat. The Cotporation is expected to contribute about Nu.135.28 million,

to the national exchequer in the form of Corporate Income Tax during financial

year 2011.

Growth in Balance sheet size is presented below

Year |[Nu. in Million %

2007 | 2,02.99) 5.96%
2008 | 2,672.76 | 32.12%
2009 | 3,567.49 | 33.48%
2010 | 583539 | 63.57%

2011 | 6,773.40| 16.07%

Statutory Compliances

Royal Monetary Authority
Most of the RMA prudential norms have been complied with. Comparative

analysis of Recovery rate, Statutory Liquidity Ratio, and the ratio of NPL for the

last five years are given below:

Statutory Liquidity Ratio of
Year Recovery Rate Ratio NPL
2007 91.32% 7.11% 18.43%
2008 92.30% 19.75 % 12.32%
2009 92.30% 1253 % 8.27%
2010 94.77 % 15.06 % 6.75%
2011 95.69% 17.65% 3.86%




Royal Audit Authority

The Royal Audit Authority has inspected and audited the operations and
performance of the company up to financial year 2009. The company is in the
process of resolving the issues raised by RAA.

Statutory Auditors

S.N. Mukhetji & Co. Chartered Accountants was appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of RICB for the financial year 2011 in the 36t Annual General Meeting
of the shareholders.

Company Registrar

The Company Registrar has inspected the company’s compliances to the
Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan 2000 up to the financial year 2009, and

no adverse comments wete noted.

110T LIOdHY TVANNY

"ALTNVLNHE 4O NOLLVIOd 0D HONVINSNI TVAOY



ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.
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Bhutan, the Royal Audit Authority of Bhutan, the Department of Revenue and
Customs for their patronage and continued suppott.

The Directors are also pleased to place on record their sincere appreciation to all
our agents, and reinsurance partners and surveyors in India without whose
support it would have been difficult td achieve the plans and goals of the
Company.

I would also like to congratulate the management and the staff of RICB for their
dedicated service, which has resulted in yet another year of commendable
performance of the Corporation. I extend my good wishes to them for the success

of the corporation in the years ahead.

Tashi Delek
- Sd/
(Tobgyal Dorji)
CHAIRMAN
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of the Royal Insurance Corporation of
Bhutan Limited (Corporation) for the year ended 31 December 2011, for the Life
Insurance Business, Group Insurance Savings Scheme (Group Insurance), General
Insurance and Credit & Investment and the related Profit and Loss Account and
Revenue Accounts for Life Insurance, Group Insurance, Fire Insurance, Marine
Insurance, Miscellaneous Insurance, Credit & Investment and Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended on that date (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”), all
of which we have signed under the reference to this report, in which are incorporated
the accounts/returns of un-audited eleven branches and nine Micro offices not
visited by us. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We report as under -

1. We conducted our audit in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatements. An audit includes examining on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

S. N. Mukherji & Co.

Chartered Accountants

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We wish to further state that the actuarial valuation of liabilities for the Life /
Group Insurance business is the responsibility of the Corporation’s appointed
actuary in accordance with the policies adopted by the Corporation. The said
valuation has been certified by the Actuary, on which we have relied upon to

express an opinion on these financial statements of the Corporation.

2. As required by section 75 of The Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan,
2000 read with part II of Schedule XIV thereto (Minimum Audit Examination
and Reporting requirements), we enclose in the annexure a statement on the

matters specified therein to the extent applicable.

3. Further, to our comments in the annexure as referred above, we report that:

(a) Our examination was made in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing standards and accordingly included such tests of accounting
records and such other auditing procedures, as we considered
appropriate for the purpose of our audit.

(b) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit.

(c) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have

been kept by the Corporation, so far as it appears from our examination

of those books.




S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(d) The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement
dealt with in this report are in agreement with the books of account and
have been compiled on the basis of generally accepted accounting

principles.

4. We draw attention in respect of the following notes on Schedule 21 /
observations:

(@) Note No.12 regarding fraud / embezzlement of funds at different offices;

(b) Note No.15 regarding non-provision of bonus payable to employees;

(c) Note No.16 regarding non-reconciliation of unadjusted deposits of Nu.1.79
million;

(d) Note No. 17(e) regarding under-provision of depreciation of earlier years
amounting to Nu.15.56 million;

(e) Note No. 21 regarding non-ascertainment of surplus and bonus payable to
policy holders based on the accounts of 2011;

(f) Note No. 22 regarding extent of further adjustments as required to be
made in these accounts that are not ascertainable at this stage, in respect of
the balances of the re-insurers for non-life policies, in view of the pending
completion of the reconciliation processes / confirmation and acceptance
of ceding of reinsurance companies;

(g) Note No. 25(a) regarding managerial remuneration awaiting shareholders’
approval;

(h) Note No. 28 regarding non-creation of liability for premium deficiency in

the books which cannot be quantified and commented upon by us;

11
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(i) Note No. 31 regarding non-reconciliation of current account maintained
with RICB Securities Ltd which may affect the financial statement of the
corporation;

() The Corporation has paid Leave Encashment benefit on cash basis as per
Significant Accounting Policy No. 2(vii) but not on accrual basis, which is
against the generally accepted accounting principle.

The impact of our observations mentioned in the above paragraphs on the

financial state of affairs and operational results of the Corporation is not

ascertainable at this stage.

Without further qualifying our opinion we would like to state that loan

appraisal processing, claim settlement, loan management and internal control,

specially in view of the fact that fraud / embezzlement of funds are taking

place at regular intervals, certain perpetrated irregularities may remain

undetected in the books.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

‘explanations given to us, subject to para 4 of above, the said accounts give the

information required by The Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000,

in the manner so required and the said accounts give a true and fair view:

i) In the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Corporation
as at 31t December 2011.
if) In the case of Profit & Loss account, of the profit of the Corporation
for the year ended on that date; and /;Tf(é?é‘;;ﬁ\\
. "““”‘*m,\fffr,_” ,
{ «2‘:";’} \'“\d\
V)
ho
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S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

iii)  In the case of Revenue Accounts, of the surplus in respect of the Life
Business, Group Insurance Business, Fire Business, Marine Business,
Miscellaneous Business and Credit & Investment;

iv) In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows during the

year ended on that date.

For & S.N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No-301079E

™~

-

\MANA |
THIm P ° Sudlf;'K. Mukherji

Place: ©6 l s] 'i"/ 2O/, Partner
Date: Membership No. 13321
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

MINIMUM AUDIT EXAMINATION AND REPORTING REQUIREMENT (Part-
I of schedule XIV to The Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000)

ANNEXURE

(REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 OF THE AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 OF
ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED)

1. (@) Maintenance of Fixed Assets Records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets require

improvement.

(b) Physical verification of Fixed Assets have been partially carried out
during the year (refer Note 17 (a) Schedule 21). The identification

numbers and locational details are in the process of updation (refer
Note 17(b) Schedule 21).

()  Pending reconciliation between the book records and physical
inventory as indicated in Note 17 (a) of Schedule 21, any discrepancy

which may arise is not ascertainable at this stage.

2. None of the Fixed Assets was revalued during the year.

3. The Corporation has borrowed money from various organizations and the
terms and conditions of such loans are prima facie, not prejudicial to the
interest of the Corporation.

4. (a). The Corporation, in normal course of its operation, has granted loans to

other companies, firms or other parties wherein the rate of interest and

other terms and conditions are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest

14



S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

of the Corporation. According to the information and explanations
provided to us, the Corporation has granted loans to companies under
the same management and the terms of the same are not, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Corporation.

(b)  The parties to whom the loans or advances have been given by the
Corporation are generally repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated
and are also generally regular in payment of interest, except for certain
parties in which cases, the outstanding loan balances comprising of
principal and interests, are considered as non-performing assets as per
Prudential Regulations 2002 of the Royal Monetary Authority of
Bhutan and for which accrued interest as recognized have been
reversed and provisioning for principal amounts have been done as per
the said Regulations and as considered prudent and appropriate by the
management.

5. The advances to officers / staff are generally granted in keeping with the
applicable provisions of service rules and no excessive / frequent advances
are generally granted and accumulation of large advances against particular
individual is generally avoided.

6. The Corporation has, in general, an established system of internal controls to
ensure completeness, accuracy and reliability of accounting records, carrying
out the business in an orderly and efficient manner, to safeguard the assets of
the Corporation as well as to ensure adherence to the rules/regulations and
system and procedures. However in our opinion Internal Control / Risk
Management needs improvement to prevent fraud.

7. There is a system of competitive bidding, commensurate with the size of the

Corporation and the nature of its business, for the purchase of goods and

15
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

10.

services including equipment and other assets and for the services buf the same
offers further scope for improvement. Since the Corporation is a financial
institution, it is not engaged in the purchase of stores and raw materials and
sale of goods.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, there has been
no transactions for purchase and sale of goods and services made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered into with the director /(s) or
any other party/(ies) related to the director /(s) or with the Companies or
firms in which the directors are directly or indirectly interested, except for
certain loans to directors which were sanctioned at the prevailing market rate
of interest. However, Card loans to directors were sanctioned, as
complimentary, without taking any security for such loan.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are
transactions entered into by the Corporation wherein the directors are directly
or indirectly interested. The examination of records in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices do not reveal any transactions that are
prejudicial to the interest of the other shareholders and the Corporation.
Records under Section 97 of the Companies Act of Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000 is
maintained but not in a required format.

The Corporation has generally been regular in depositing the rates and taxes,
duties, provident funds, and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. Provision for corporate tax is made @ 30% of book profit as
disclosed in Accounting Polices No. 14 of Schedule No 20. However
necessary adjustments have not been made to calculate the income tax liability

as required under the Income Tax Act of The Kingdom of Bhutan,2001.

16



S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, as at the
Balance Sheet date, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
rates, taxes, duties, royalties, provident funds and other statutory deductions.
During our examination of the books of account we have not come across any
instances of personal expenses, which have been charged to the Corporation’s
accounts, other than those payable under contractual obligations or in
accordance with generally accepted business practices nor we have been
reported of any such instance by the management. |

The Corporation is engaged in insurance business and its system of screening
commission agents is generally adequate, although the Corporation is yet to
formulate a structured documented procedures to this effect. The agency
commission structure is in keeping with the industry norms / market
conditions, as we have been given to understand by the management. As
informed to us, the Corporation has, in general, a system of evaluating
performance of each agent on a periodic. However necessary documents in
this regard were not produced to us for our verification. In our opinion, such
systems offer further scope for improvement.

There has been, in general, a reasonable system for continuous follow-up of
receivables for recovery of its outstanding amounts but the same offers further
scope for improvement. Also, age-wise analysis of outstanding amounts is
generally carried out by management for information and follow-up actions, if
required.

The management of liquid resources particularly cash / bank and short term
deposits, etc., are generally adequate and as such no excessive amounts are
lying idle in non-interest bearing accounts. Withdrawals of loan amounts are

made after assessing the requirements of funds from time to time and no

) S
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

excess amount is withdrawn leading to avoidable interest burden on the

Corporation has been made during the year under review.

16. On the basis of examination of the books of account and according to the

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

information and explanations provided to us, the activities carried out by the
Corporation are lawful and intra-vires to the Articles of Incorporation of the

Corporation.

Based on the information and explanations / representations given to us and
on the basis of the examination of the books of account we state that the
activities / investments are made, subject to prior approval of the Board and
investments in new projects are generally made only after ascertaining the
technical and economic feasibility of such new ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there has been an
effective budgetary control system for the Corporation, as a whole.

The details of remuneration paid to the directors of the Corporation have been
disclosed in Note 25 (a) and (b) of Schedule 21.

The directives of the Board have generally been complied with, by the
management of the Corporation during the year.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, we have not
come across any instance of price sensitive information transmitted by the
officials of the Corporation which are not made publicly available,
unauthorized to their relatives/friends/associates or close persons which
would directly or indirectly benefit themselves, nor have we been informed of

any such case by the management.

22. Adequate documents and records are generally maintained in respect of loans

and advances and agreements have been drawn up and timely entries have

been made therein. However there is scope for improvement in record maintenance
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S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

for loans and advances as stated in our Audit Report to the Management. The

settlement of claims in regard to General Insurance business also requires
improvement.

The Corporation has investment in equity shares in companies, however it is
not engaged in dealing or trading in shares, securities and other investments.
Reasonable records are generally maintained for funds collected from
depositors and for interest payment.

The Corporation follows the accounting policy of making provisions for
permanent diminution, if any, in the value of investment in shares.

The Corporation has generally complied with the requirements of Financial
Institutions Act, 1992 and and other applicable laws, rules and regulations and
guidelines issued by the appropriate Authorities. The Financial Services Act
2011 has come into effect during the year and the Corporation should ensure
compliance of the applicable provisions of the Act as early as possible.
Recognition of interest income in respect of non-performing assets have been
deferred in terms of Prudential Regulations, 2002.

For the assets hypothecated against loans and advances, the Corporation, in
general, has a system of performing physical verification, proper valuation
and execution of mortgage deeds at the disbursement stage and the
Corporation also ensured that at that stage, such assets are free of any prior
lien or charges. However there is scope for improvement in record maintenance for
loans and advances as stated in our Audit Report to the Management.

We have been given to understand that the Corporation has, in general, a
system of monitoring of projects for which loans have been provided to ensure
that loan amounts are used for the specified purposes and project activities are

progressing satisfactorily.
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

30.

3L

32.

33.

According to the information and explanations given, the Corporation, in
general, has a system of disposing assets taken over through open
auction/sealed bids.

The Corporation, in general, has the system for carrying out proper analysis
before permitting re-phasing/rescheduling of loans (including non-
performing loans). On the basis of examination carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing procedures and based on the information and
explanations provided to us by the management, rephrasing has not generally
been permitted in respect of non-performing loans.

The Corporation, in general, has the system to ensure that additional loans are
not granted to those who have defaulted payments of previous advances.
However, in some cases new loans were sanctioned, despite default in payment by the
borrowers.

Items 3 to 6, 14 to 17, 21 to 27 and 34 of the matters specified in the Minimum
Audit and Reporting Requirements are for Manufacturing, Mining, or
Processing Companies, are not applicable, as the Corporation is a financial
institution and is not engaged in any manufacture and production activity /
sale of goods and has no inventory of .finished goods, stores, spare parts and
raw materials except for stock of stationery items and consumables. It was
noted that there are certain old stationeries lying in the books, that should be

written off/sale as scrap.
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S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Reporting requirements on computerized accounting environment

34.

35.

36.

37.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the
organizational and system development controls and other internal controls
are generally adequate commensurate with size and nature of computer
installations.

According to information and explanations provided to us, adequate
safeguard measures and back-up facilities measures generally exist including
maintenance of local stand-by servers at Head Office and Phuentsholing

Regional Office for the database of their respective locations, except absence of

documented policies regarding back-ups.

According to information and explanations provided to us, the operational
controls are generally adequate to ensure correctness and validity of input
data and output information.

According to information and explanations provided to us, the measures to
prevent unauthorized access over the computers installations and files are

generally adequate accept proper structured documented systems and

-procedures relating to access controls, including polices and its implantations

regarding changing of passwords at periodical intervals and invalidations
thereof, in cases of circumstances.

General:

Going concern problems

In view of the financial position, the Corporation is not likely to face going

concern problems in the foreseeable future.
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S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

2. Ratio Analysis
The significant ratios indicating the financial health and profitability of the
Corporation are given in the annexed Appendix.

3. Compliance with the Companies Act of Kingdom of Bhutan
The Company has complied with the Requirement of The Companies Act of
the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000 except with the following:
Maintaining records viz., (a) Register of Directors and (b) Register of directors’ share-
holding and Register of charges incorporating the details as required in prescribed
Jormat under Section 97 of The Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000.

4. Adherence to Laws, Rules and Regulations
Audit of the Corporation is governed by The Companies Act of the Kingdom
of Bhutan, 2000 and the scope of audit is limited to examination and reviews
of the financial statement as produced to us by the management. In the course
of audit, we have considered the compliance of provision of the said
Companies Act and its Article of Incorporation. The Company does not have a
comprehensive Compliance Reporting and Recording System as regards
adherence to all laws, rules and regulations, systems, procedures and
practices. Under the circumstances we are unable to comment on the

compliance of the same by the Company during the year 2011.

Place: Thimphu For S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chagxtered Accountants
Date: 06 J07/2012 Firtyl's Registration No. 301079E

™™
Sudip K, Mukherji

Partner
Membership No0.13321
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APPENDIX
(REFERRED TO IN THE RATIO ANALYSIS OF OUR OBSERVATIONS UNDER MINIMUM AUDIT
EXAMINATION AND REPORTING REQUIREMENT (Part-1I of schedule XIV to The Companies

Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 200) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2011 OF ROYAL
INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT RATIOS

FINANCIAL RATIOS: 2011 2010
A |STABILITY RATIOS:
1|Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 17.20 18.33
2{Solvency Ratio (General Insurance) (%) 547 524
3|{Non-Performance Loan Ratio (%) 3.86 6.75
4|Net Worth to Total Liabilities (%) 18.05 16.70
5|Equity Investments to (Net Worth + Insurance Fund) (%) 3.19 2.46
B |PROFITABILITY RATIOS:
1|Combined Ratios (Gross Expenses to Net Premium)
a| Life Insurance (%) 35.83 35.52
b|Group Insurance Scheme (%) 19417 202.10
c|General Insurance (%) 63.08 90.00
d| Credit & Investment (Interest Differential) (%) 57.28 57.46
2|Claim Ratio (Net)
a| Life Insurance (%) 12.23 14.84
b|Group Insurance Scheme (%) 44.18 53.15
c|General Insurance (%) 45.88 64.80
d|Recovery Rate (Credit & Investment) (%) 95.69 94.77
3a|Mgt. Expenses to Gross Premium - (Life Insurance) (%) 99.04 13.03
b|Mgt. Expenses to Gross Premium - (Group Insurance) (%) 45.89 47.62
c|Mgt. Expenses to Gross Premium - (General Insurance ) (%) 852 9.58
d[Mgt. Expenses to Gross Interest ~ -(Credit & Investment) (%) 598 -7.19
4 |Operating Income to Net worth -Net (%) 36.89 30.81
5 |Operating Income to Total Assets (%) 6.66 514
6 |Net Profit (After Tax) to Net Worth (%) 2582 21.57
7 |Net Profit (After Tax) to Total Assets (%) 4.66 3.60
8 |Return on Core Equity (Profit After Tax) (%) 131.52 87.56
C |STRUCTURAL RATIOS :
1|Debt/Core Equity Ratio 14.79 13.62
2|Long Term Debt to Net Worth 2.90 3.36
3|Net Fixed Assets to Long Term Debt 0.03 0.04
4|Net Fixed Assets to Net Worth 0.10 0.12
Financial Data 2011 2010
Face Value of share (Nu.) 100.00 100.00
Earning per Share (Nu.) 131.52 87.56
Book Value per Share (Nu.) 509.38 406.01
Market price per Share (Nu.) 450.00 350.00
Dividend per share (Nu.) 30.00 25.00
No. of Shareholders 1,556.00 1,556.00
Shareholding pattern: No of shares 2,400,000 | 2,400,000
His Majesty's Secretarait (%) 20.83 20.83
Druk Holding & Investment (%) 18.41 18.41
Private & Public Holders (%) 60.76 60.76
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ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2011

LIABILITIES Schedule 2011 2010
Capital Fund Nu. Nu.
Shareholders' Fund
Authorised Capital 12 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 12 240,000,000 240,000,000
Reserves and Surplus 13 982,515,475 734,419 811

1,222,515,475 974,419,811

Other Funds & Borrowings
Insurance Funds 14 1,419,964,520 1,084,402,796
Investment and Borrowing Funds 15 5,278,363 ,895 4621200431

6,698,328,415 5,705,603,227
Less: Insurance Funds Investments 1,727,828,371 1,351,958,882
4,970,500,044 4,353,644,345

Other Liabilities
Reinsurance Reserves 1,561,433 738,803
Sundry Creditors 16 358,926,844 314,170,419
Due on Reinsurance and Insurance Business 17 3,046,239 854,900
Outstanding Claims less Reinsurance 18 9,566,977 41,501,533
Corporate Tax payable 135,279,779 90,057,833
Dividend Payable 72,000,000 60,000,000

580,384,272 507,323,487
6,773,399,791 5,835,387,643

ASSETS
Cash and Bank Balances 5 978,129,133 730,095,396
Fore-ign Currency Balance with a Bank 1,393,790 1.760.805
outside Bhutan

979,522,923 731,856,201

Loans and Investments
Equity [nvestment 6 84,415,300 50,665,300
Treasury Bills - -
Loans and Advances 7 5,382,610,606 4,802,068,162
Assets acquired against Loans 57,066,871 56,075,790

5,524,092,777 4,908,809,252

Less: Provisions
For Diminution in value of Investment 434,478 434,478
For Diminution in Value of Assets 57,066,871 56,075,790
For Loans and Advances 109,451,983 108,476,740
For Interest Suspense 20,487,779 23,644 371

187,441,111 188,631,379
§,336,651,666 4,720,177,873

Fixed Assets
Gross Block- at cost 8 219,299,526 188,456,065
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 99,784 365 70,674,887
Net Block 119,515,161 117,781,178
Capital Work in Progress 11,957,927 4,122,816

131,473,088 121,903,994

Other Assets
Interest, Rent and Other Receivables 9 175,394,087 176,364,857
Due from Reinsurance & Insurance Business 10 62,313,729 23,756,782
Advances, Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 11 88,044,299 61,327,937

325,752,118 261,449,576
6,773,399,791 5,835,387,643

Significant Accounting Policies 20

Notes to Accounts 21

The schedules referred to above form an intregal part of this Balance sheet.
We certify that the values of all assets have been reviewed as at 31st December, 2011 and that the assets set forth in the Balance sheet are
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date. On behalf of the Board of Directors
S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Hartered Accountants
)‘?i m's registration no. 301079E

(o
! H
AVAIN W VAY
(Sudip K. Mukherji) ‘f}ene I Manager Chjgf Exgutive Director
Partner (H&A Dept.) Offiter

Membership Number: 13321
Place: Thimphu

Date: O6JO7 [20/2-
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LIABILITIES Schedule
Funds
Life Insurance Fund 14A
Other Liabilities
Sundry Creditors [Note 16(a) on Schedule 21] 16A
Due on Reinsurance and Insurance Business 17A
Outstanding Claims less Reinsurance 18A
ASSETS
Cash and Deposits
Cash and Bank Balance 5A
Loans
Policy Loans
Investment Fund
Life Investment Fund 15AA
Other Assets
Interest, Rent and other Receivables 9A
Due from Reinsurance and Insurance Business
Advances, Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 11B
Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes to Accounts 21

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
LIFE INSURANCE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2011

2011 2010

Nu. Nu.
654,272,648 472,445,540
34,835,230 22,160,813
2,914,163 2,725,943
37,749,393 24,886,756
692,022,041 497,332,296
8,911,498 23,506,376
320,529 504,702
643,379,999 444,356,677
38,732,157 28,183,791
677,858 780,750
39,410,015 28,964,541
692,022,041 497,332,296

The schedules referred to above and attached thereto form an integral part of this Balance sheet.
We certify that the values of all assets have been reviewed as at 31st December, 2011 and that
the assets set forth in the Balance sheet are shown in the aggregate at amounts not exceeding
their realisable or market values.

This is the Life Insurance Balance Sheet

referred to in our report of even date.

For S. N. Mukherji & Co
Chartered Accountants

-~
~

Sudip K. Mukherji)

Partner

Membership Number: 13321
Place: Thimphu

Date: 06 /07 0/
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On behalf of the Board of Directors
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110T LIOdHY TVANNY

"ALTNVLNHE 4O NOLLVIOd 0D HONVINSNI TVAOY



ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

GROUP INSURANCE SAVING BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2011

LIABILITIES Schedule
Funds

GIS Savings Liability

GIS Interest Liability

GIS Fund

14B

Other Liabilities

Sundry Creditors 16B

Outstanding Claims 18B
ASSETS
Cash and Deposits

Cash and Bank Balance 5B
Investment Fund

Group Investment Fund 15AB
Other Assets

Interest, Rent and other Receivables 9B

Advances, Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 11A
Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes to Accounts 21

2011 2010

Nu. Nu.
208,887,243 258,315,699
230,606,519 204,401,389
43,467,381 35,718,204
572,961,143 498,435,292
594,190 395,802
900,000 2,100,000
1,494,190 2,495,802
574,455,333 500,931,094
6,791,353 14,447 596
524,759,893 448,046,496
39,282,686 35,292,801
3,621,401 3,144,200
42,904,087 38,437,001
574,455,333 500,931,093

- The schedules referred to above and attached thereto form an integral part of this Balance sheet.
We certify that the values of all assets have been reviewed as at 31st December, 2011 and that the

assets set forth in the Balance sheet are shown in the aggregate at amounts not exceeding their
realisable or market values.

This is the Group Insurance Scheme Balance
Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For S. N. Mukherji & Co.

Chaytered Accountants

(Sudsp K. Mukherji) \s Generl
Partner (

Membership Number: 13321
Place: Thimphu

B SN

Date: 06 fo7/Q0I2
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On behalf of the Board of Directors

Chief Execu
Officer

P
e ﬁman Director




ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
GENERAL INSURANCE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2011

LIABILITIES Schedule 2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
Reserve and Surplus 13B 705,776,087 565,439,811
Funds
Insurance Funds 14C 192,730,729 113,521,964
Other Liabilities
Reinsurance Reserves 1,561,433 738,803
Sundry Creditors 16C 51,262,756 20,737,140
Due on Reinsurance and Insurance Business 17B 3,049,239 854,900
Outstanding Claims less Reinsurance ceded 18C 5,752,814 36,675,590
Corporate Tax payable 55,858,403 45,072,217
117,484,645 104,078,650
1,015,991,460 783,040,425
ASSETS
Cash and Bank Balances 5C 47,857,659 40,370,702
Foreign Currency balance held with a Bank 1,349,161 1,716,176
outside Bhutan : 49,206,820 42,086,878
Investments
Investment Fund 15AC 852,069,448 622,220,732
Other Assets
Interest, Rent and other Receivables 9C 52,370,221 95,326,784
Due from Reinsurance and Insurance Business 61,635,871 22,976,032
Advances, Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 11C 709,100 430,000
114,715,192 118,732,816
1,015,991,460 783,040,425
Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes to Accounts 21

The schedules referred to above and attached thereto form an integral part of this Balance sheet.

We certify that the values of all assets have been reviewed as at 31st December, 2011 and that

the assets set forth in the Balance sheet are shown in the aggregate at amounts not exceeding

their realisable or market values.

This is the General Insurance Balance Sheet .
referred to in our report of even date. On behalf of Board of Directors

For S. N. Mukherji & Co. -
tered Accountants

(Sudipk Mukherji) Genefof Manager Chief*Executife hairman irector
Partner (H&A Dept.) Officer
Membership Number: 13321

Place: Thimphu
Date: O6 /o 0
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
CREDIT & INVESTMENT BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2011

LIABILITIES Schedule 2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
Reserves and Surplus 13C | 696,521,560 | | 482,578,503 |
696,521,560 482,578,503
Funds
Borrowing Funds 15 | 5278,363,895 | [ 4,621,200431 |
5,278,363,895 4,621,200,431
Other Liabilities
Sundry creditors 16D 258,851,979 258,610,855
Corporate Tax payable 87,400,619 52,727,264
346,252,598 311,338,119
6,321,138,053 5,415,117,053
ASSETS
Cash and Bank Balances 5 913,862,240 652,741,823
Investments
Equity Investment 6 84,415,300 50,665,300
Treasury Bills - -
Loans and Advances (Net of Credit) 7 5,382,290,077 4,801,563,460
Assets acquired against Loans 57,066,871 56,075,790
5,523,772,248 4,908,304,550
Less: Provisions
For Diminution in value of Investment 434,478 434,478
For Diminution in Value of Assets 57,066,871 56,075,790
For Loans and Advances 109,451,983 108,476,740
For Interest Suspense 20,487,779 23,644,371
187,441,111 188,631,379
5,336,331,137 4,719,673,171
Other Assets
Interest, Rent and other Receivables 9D 43,398,599 16,659,295
Advances, Deposits and Prepaid ExpenSeS 11D 27,546,076 26,042,764
70,944,675 42,702,059
6,321,138,053 5,415,117,053
Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes to Accounts 21

The schedules referred to above and attached thereto form an intregal part of this Balance sheet.
We certify that the values of all assets have been reviewed as at 31st December, 2011 and that the assets
set forth in the Balance sheet are shown in the aggregate at amounts not exceeding their realisable or

market values.
This is the Credit & [ t t Bal heet referred to i
is is the Credi nvestment Balance Sheet referred to in On behalf of Board of Directors
our report of even date.
For S. N. Mukherji & Co. -
artered Accountants

(Sudip K. Mukherji)
Partner

Membership Number: 13321
Place: Thimphu

Date: 06 JO7/o015. .

Chi egutive
Officer
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER,2011

Schedule 2011 2010
OPERATING INCOME Nu. Nu.
Surplus transferred from -
Miscellaneous Insurance Revenue Account 102,404,479 71,597,500
Marine Insurance Revenue Account 7,872,543 4,313,896
Fire Insurance Revenue Account 75,917,655 74,329,324
‘ 186,194,677 150,240,720
Life Insurance Revenue Account 2,784,607 -
Investment Revenue Account 291,335,396 175,757,548
480,314,680 325,998,268
OTHER INCOME
Rental Income 6,385,615 5,299,277
Miscellaneous Income 236,880 930,312
6,622,494 6,229,589
TOTAL INCOME 486,937,174 332,227,857
OPERATING EXPENSES.
Repairs and Maintenance 2,673,103 1,524,874
Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Note 14 on Schedule 21) 3,569,267 3,917,985
Depreciation 13,544,048 11,447,631
Other Expenses 16,218,159 15,144,589
36,004,577 32,035,080
Profit Before Taxation 450,932,597 300,192,777
Taxation (Note 9 on Schedule 21) 135,279,779 90,057,833
Short provision for previous years (Depreciation) 15,565,430 -
Profit available for Appropriations 300,087,388 210,134,944
APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed Dividend 72,000,000 60,000,000
Transfer to Catastrophe Fund (Note 11 on Schedule 21) 5,000,000 5,000,000
Transfer to General Reserve 223,087,388 145,134,944
300,087,388 210,134,944
Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes to Accounts 21

The Schedules referred to above form an intregral part of this Profit and Loss Account.
This is the Profit and Loss Account

referred to in our report of even date. On behalf of Board of Directors

For S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firgg's registration no. 301079E

N

! Chief fixdcytive airman Director
Dept.) fficer

-

< \ E
(Sudip K. Mukherji) Gene

Partner (F
Membership Number: 13321
Place: Thimphu

Date: 06)07 2012,
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ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
LIFE INSURANCE REVENUE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2011

2011 2010
REVENUE Schedule Nu. Nu.
Premium Less Reinsurance
Other Policies 1 222,184,110 154,577,133
Interest on Investment Fund of Life Fund 38,734,357 28,183,791
Interest on Policy Loan 87,792 55,939
Commission on reinsurance ceded 240,922 -
Prior Period Adjustment - 982,969
Other revenue 192,820 1,253,520
TOTAL (1) 261,440,001 185,053,352
EXPENSES
Claims Paid And Outstanding Net of Reinsurance
By Death/Maturity /Surrender
Other Policies 2 27,167,832 22,945,725
Life Policies Bonus [Notes 21 on Schedule 21] 11,203,752 1,634,983
[Inclusive of Interim Bonus Nu. 65,322.93]
Commission & Others 15,498,536 10,170,604
Prior Period Adjustment 280,651
Surplus Allocated to Shareholders - Per Actuarial Report 2,784,607
56,935,378 34,751,312
MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
Other Policies 19 22,677,597 20,150,658
TOTAL (1) 79,612,975 54,901,970
Net Fund During the Year IIT (I-11) 181,827,026 130,151,382
Life Fund Brought Forward from Previous Year (Iv) 472,445,622 342,294,240
LIFE FUND CARRIED FORWARD (I +1V) 654,272,648 472,445,622
Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes to Accounts 21

The Schedules referred to above and attached thereto form an intregal part of this Revenue Account,

This is the Life Revenue Account
referred to in our report of even date.

For S . N. Mukherji & Co
rtered Accountants -

(Sudip K. Mukherji) Genetal Chief Executive
Partner (F& Officer
Membership Number: 13321
Place: Thimphu

Date: 06 /07/30/2
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Chairman
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
GROUP SAVINGS - CUM INSURANCE SCHEME
REVENUE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2011

2010 2010
REVENUE Schedule Nu. Nu.
Premium
Group Saving Linked Insurance Policies 2,139,424 1,337,264
Group Insurance Cum Savings Policies 31,585,712 28,768,936
33,725,136 30,106,200
Interest On Investment Of GIS Fund 39,282,686 35,292,801
Other Revenue 224,282 185,677
TOTAL (1) 73,232,104 65,584,678
EXPENSES
Claims Paid and Outstanding
Group Saving Linked Insurance Policies (Death) 2 600,000 200,000
Group Insurance Cum Savings Policies (Death) 2 14,300,000 15,800,000
14,500,000 16,000,000
Interest On Group Insurance Cum Savings 34,472,320 30,030,321
Group Saving Linked Insurance Policies 634,622 477,512
Others ( Medical Expenses)
50,006,942 46,507,833
Management Expenses
Group Saving Linked Insurance Policies 695,804 644,531
Civil Employees 11,427,670 10,585,573
Armed Forces 3,352,510 3,105,466
19 15,475,984 14,335,570
TOTAL (1) 65,482,926 60,843,403
Net Fund During the Year mr (I-10) 7,749,178 4,741,275
GIS Fund Brought Forward From Previous Year (Iv) 35,718,203 30,976,928
Group Fund Carried Forward (III+1V) 43,467,381 35,718,203
Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes to Accounts 21

The Schedules referred to above and attached thereto form an intregal part of this Revenue Account.
This is the GIS Revenue Account
referred to in our report of even date.

For S . N. Mukherji & Co
rtered Accountants

e
{Sudip K. Mukherji) g Gene

Partner (F
Membership Number: 13321
Place: Thimphu

_Date: 06 /67 bo)a

On behalf of Board of Directors

-

er Chief Execttive Chairman Director
Officer
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

CREDIT & INVESTMENT REVENUE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2011

INTEREST INCOME
Interest on Loans (net of suspense)
Interest on Fixed Deposit - Gross

LESS:- INTEREST EXPENSES
Interest on Life Fund

Interest on GIS Fund

Interest on General Fund
Interest on PPF Fund

Interest on Borrowings

Interest on Bonds

NET INTEREST DIFFERENTIAL
ADD: OTHER INCOME

Guarantee Commission
Dividends - Gross
Provision Written Back
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME
LESS: OPERATING EXPENSES.
Bad Debts/Other Assets Written Off
Miscellaneous Expenses

Provisions

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING PROFIT

Less: Management Expenses
Transfer to Profit & Loss Account
Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Accounts

B
(A-B)=(C)

D
(C+D)=(E)

(F)

(E-F)=(G)
H

(G-H)
20
21

2011 2010

Nu. Nu.
646,723,537 470,204,542
27,834,863 14,465,565
674,558,400 484,670,107
38,734,357 28,183,791
39,282,686 35,292,801
52,370,221 43,647,368
22,166,754 17,393,012
79,689,880 48,510,048
136,901,747 93,102,179
369,145,645 266,129,199
305,412,755 218,540,908
21,478,497 11,367,748
15,028,360 8,342,450
- 27,232,354
1,194,154 1,159,947
37,701,011 48,102,499
343,113,766 266,643,407
27,124,524
2,230,197 952,155
10,983,523 29,527,807
13,213,720 57,604,486
329,900,046 209,038,921
38,564,650 33,281,373
291,335,396 175,757,548

The Schedules referred to above and attached thereto form an intregal part of this Revenue Account.

This is the Credit & Investment Revenue
Account referred to in our report of even date.

Fox S. N. Mukherji & Co.
aytered Accountants

h SR

NN
(Sudip-K. Mukherji) \ Gener

Partner (F&

Membership Number: 13321
Place: Thimphu

Date: ©&Jo 9@0[3

POAT
N,

Chief Exetutive
Officer

33

airman

On behalf of Board of Directors

Director

110T LIOdHY TVANNY

"ALTNVLNHE 40 NOLLVIOd 0D HONVINSNI TVAOY



ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2011

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PROFIT BEFORE TAX- As per Profit and Loss Account

ADD:- Depreciation (Net of adjustment)

Less:-  Profit on sale of Assets
Add/(Less).Increase/(Decrease) in
Other Liabilities
Add/(Less):Increase/ (Decrease) in
Other Assets
Add/ (Less):Increase/ (Decrease) in Loans
and Investments
Add/ (Less):Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES -
Taxation
NET CASH FLOW FROM RETURN ON INVESTMENTS
AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
Dividend paid
NET CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Sale of Fixed assets
Purchase of Fixed Assets

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES-
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

BORROWINGS ACCEPTED (NET)/ (REPAYMENTS-NET)
INVESTMENT FUNDS MANAGEMENT

INSURANCE FUNDS MANAGEMENT

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES-

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
((A) + (B)+ (C)+ (D)+ (E))

A
(®)

(C)

(D)

(E)

OPENING BLANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS- CASH AND BANK

BALANCES

CLOSING BLANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-CASH AND BANK

BALANCES

2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
450,932,597 300192777
13,544,048 11,447,631
464,476,646 311,640,409
464,476,646 311,640,409
73,060,784 55,258,719
(64,302,539) 61,240,966
(615,283,525) (1,888,181,621)
7,066,555 (31,225,154)
(134,982,078) (1,491,266,681)
(135,279,779) (74,853,120)
(60,000,000) {60,000,000)
3,087,588 4,400
(42,014,707) (23,814,912)
(38,927,119) (23,810,512)
281,293,974 1,852,174,060
375,869,490 97,543,232
(40,307,765) 88,335,554
616,855,698 2,038,052,846
247,666,722 388,122,533
731,856,201 343,733,668
979,522,923 731,856,201
247,666,722 388,122,533

1. This Schedules referred to above form an intregal part of this Cash Flow Statement.
2. This Cash Flow Statement is prepared under "Indirect Method" as reallocation required for the proper -

arrangement as made by the Corporation.
3. Figures in parentheies is indicated Out Flows.

4. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

This is the Cash Flow Statement

referred to in our report of even date.

For 8. N. Mukherji & Co.

Chaxtered Accountants -

(Sudip K. Mukherji)
Partner

Membership Number: 13321
Place: Thimphu

Date: 06/07 /o012
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On behalf of Board of Directors

Chlefo/

Officer

an

Diréctor



ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

SCHEDULES ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T

DECEMBER, 2011
2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
PREMIUM LESS REISNURANCE
LIFE POLICES
FIRST YEAR PREMIUM (A) 81,819,733 57,191,655
RENEWAL PREMIUM (B) 141,077,991 97,397,858
(A+B) 222,897,724 154,589,513
Less: Reinsurance 713,614 12,380
222,184,110 154,577,133
CLAIMS PAID AND OUTSTANDING
(A) Group Saving Linked Insurance-GSLI (by Death)
Paid during the year 600,000 200,000
Add: Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims
at the end of the year. - -
600,000 200,000
Less: outstanding at the end of the previous year - -
TOTAL CLAIMS PAID 600,000 200,000
(B) Group Saving Scheme Insurance (By Death)
Paid during the year 14,300,000 15,800,000
Add: Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims
at the end of the year. - -
14,300,000 15,800,000
Less:- Outstanding at the end of the previous year
TOTAL CLAIMS PAID/PAYABLE 14,900,000 16,000,000
CLAIMS PAID AND OUTSTANDING NET OF REINSURANCE
Life Insurance
(C) Other Policies (By Death/Maturity/Survival Benefits/Surrender)
Paid during the year 27,523,922 23,578,361
Add: Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding
claims at the end of the year . - -
27,523,922 23,578,361
Less: Outstanding at the end of the previous year. 356,090 -
27,167,832 23,578,361
Less: Re-Insurance - 632,637
Net Claims 27,167,832 22,945,725
PREMIUM LESS REINSURANCE
1) Fire Insurance Policies
Rural Insurance Policies 7,624,881 7,462,750
Other Insurance Policies 226,827,933 199,195,306
234,452,814 206,658,056
LESS: Reinsurance 136,925,377 155,915,624
NET PREMIUM 97,527,437 50,742,432
2) Miscellaneous Insurance Policies
Motor Insurance Policies 235,649,336 182,513,392
Other Insurance Policies 103,119,838 37,727,655
Aviation Insurance Policies 31,306,076 34,055,297
370,075,250 254,296,344
LESS: Reinsurance 149,510,913 118,420,281
NET PREMIUM 220,564,335 135,876,063
3) Marine Insurance Policies
Premium [ 14,264,539 | 9,924,697 |
LESS: Reinsurance 11,138,430 7,339,919
NET PREMIUM 3,126,109 2,584,778

"ALTNVLNHE 40 NOLLVIOd 0D HONVINSNI TVAOY
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ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

4 CLAIMS PAID AND OUTSTANDING NET OF REINSURANCE

1) Fire Insurance Policies
Paid during the year
Rural Insurance Policies
Other Insurance Policies

Add: Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims at the
end of the year -Intimated

LESS: Reinsurance
NET CLAIMS

2) Miscellaneous Insurance Policies

Paid during the year
Motor Insurance Policies

Other Insurance Policies

Aviation Insurance Policies

Add: Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims
at the end of the year - Intimated only.

Motor Insurance Policies

Other Insurance Policies

Aviation Insurance Policies

LESS: Reinsurance

Motor Insurance Policies
Other Insurance Policies
Aviation Insurance Policies

NET CLAIMS

3) Marine Insurance Policies
Claims Paid during the year
Add: Total estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims at the end
of the year - Intimated only.

LESS: Reinsurance
NET CLAIMS

CASH (including cheques) AND BANK BALANCE
Cash in Hand
General Insurance Department
BANK BALANCES
In Current Accounts in Bhutan
A Life Insurance Department (LID)
B Group Insurance Schemes Department (GIS)
C  General Insurance Department (GID)
D General Administration Department GAD)
(A)

CREDIT & INVESTMENT DEPARTMENT
Cash in Hand - As Certified by Management
BANK BALANCES

In Current Accounts in Bhutan

In Current Accounts outside Bhutan

Fixed Deposit

(B)
TOTAL (A+B)

36

2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
7,609,881 7,462,750
152,935,251 39,598,062
160,545,132 47,060,812
160,545,132 47,060,812
123,735,652 26,532,348
36,809,480 20,528,464
166,309,555 74,589,875
36,048,224 10,808,003
38,662,209 61,111,980
37,038,527 16,466,681
278,058,515 162,976,539
92,812,659 37,587,905
73,311,513 23,563,693
166,124,172 61,151,598
111,934,343 101,824,941
1,906,674 (51,308)
- 2,360,000
1,906,674 2,308,692
3,276,776 2,056,132
(1,370,102) 252,560
- 2,030,741
8,911,498 23,506,376
6,791,353 14,447,596
49,206,820 40,056,137
751,012 (926,472)
65,660,683 79,114,378
19,893,003 11,948,420
138,924,608 240,748,774
44,629 44,629
755,000,000 400,000,000
913,862,240 652,741,823
979,522,923 731,856,201




6 EQUITY INVESTMENT AT COST - LONG TERM
Credit & Investment Department
In Quoted Equity Shares*
Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Ltd.
(181370 Nos Share, Face Value Nu. 100/-)
Bhutan Ferro Alloys Ltd.
(80000 Nos Share, Face Value Nu. 100/-)
Penden Cement Authority Ltd.
(18315 Nos Shares, Face Value Nu. 100/-)
Bhutan National Bank
(150000 Nos Shares, Face Value Nu. 100/-)
State Trading Corporation of Bhutan Ltd.
(19600 Nos Shares, Face Value Nu. 100/-)
Bhutan Board Products Ltd.
(11830 Nos shares, Face value Nu. 100/-)
TOTAL QUOTED EQUITY INVESTMENTS (A}
IN UNQUOTED EQUITY SHARES
Bhutan Development Finance Corpn.
(3000 Nos Shares, Face Value Nu. 1000/-)
RICB Securities Ltd.
(5000 Nos Shares, Face Value Nu. 100/-)
TOTAL UNQUOTED EQUITY INVESTMENTS (B)
TOTAL INVESTMENTS [(A)+(B)]

*Note: Aggregate Marked values of Quoted shares as on 31st December 2011 Nu, 276,039,250

(2010 Nu. 269,099,450/-)

7 LOANS AND ADVANCES
A Life Insurance Department Against Life Policies I

B CREDIT & INVESTMENT DEPARTMENT
Against Mortatgage/Hypothecation of Properties/Fixed Assets in
Bhutan
(A) Secured
Housing Loans
Transport Loans
Industrial Loans
Staff Loans
Business Loans
Shares Loans
Personal Loans
RICB Card Loans
Preferential Loans
Contractor Loans(CRC Scheme)
Private Provident Fund Loan
I
(B) Unsecured
Housing Loans
Transport Loans
Industrial Loans
Business Loans
Shares Loans
Personal Loans
RICB Card Loans
Preferential Loans
Contractor Loans(CRC Scheme)
Private Provident Fund Loan
111
(II+111)
(C) Less: Credit Balance

Total Loans & Advances

37

2011 2010
Nu. Nu.

24,311,650 24,311,650
8,100,000 8,100,000
3,169,400 3,169,400
43,125,000 9,375,000
980,000 980,000
1,229,250 1,229,250
80,915,300 47,165,300
3,000,000 3,000,000
500,000 500,000
3,500,000 3,500,000
84,415,300 50,665,300
320,529 504,702
1,800,769,566 1,544,877,787
764,992,465 698,586,152
689,918,558 577,515,606
17,928,889 15,520,634
619,119,910 612,809,372
25,491,452 54,428,010
458,117,681 415,181,830
575,238,190 474,719,111
186,962,127 187,930,186
226,905,006 198,231,739
9,406,987 7,906,204
5,374,850,831 4,787,706,629
805,280 955,499
- 486,556
- 8,264
5,958,391 6,229,976
56,573 854,735
619,002 4,430,289
- 485,657
- 405,853
7,439,245 13,856,829
5,382,290,077 4,801,563,459
5,382,610,606 4,802,068,162
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10

11

INTEREST, RENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
A Life Insurance Department
Internal Department adjustment

B Group Insurance Department

C General Insurance Department
Internal Department adjustment

D Credit & Investment Department
Internal Department adjustment

E General Administration Department
Interest Receivable from CID
Stock in hand :
Others

Internal Department adjustment

DUE FROM OTHER ON REINSURANCE
AND INSURANCE BUSINESS

A General Insurance Department

B Life Insurance Department

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PRE-PAID EXPENSES.
A Group Insurance Department
Internal Department adjustment

B Life Insurance Department

C - General Insurance Department

D Credit & Investment Department
Internal Department adjustment

E General Administration Department
Advance Corporate Tax
Advance to staff

Others

39

2011 2010
Nu. Nu.

38,732,157 28,183,791
38,732,157 28,183,791
39,282,686 35,292,801
52,370,221 95,326,784
52,370,221 95,326,784
43,398,599 16,659,295
43,398,599 16,659,295
958,844 441,201
651,530 460,985
1,610,424 902,186
1,610,424 902,186
175,394,087 176,364,857
61,635,871 22,976,032
677,858 780,750
62,313,729 23,756,782
3,621,401 3,144,200
3,621,401 3,144,200
709,100 430,000
27,546,076 26,042,764
27,546,076 26,042,764
45,744,757 27,366,215
247,487 63,139
10,175,478 4,281,620
56,167,722 31,710,973
88,044,299 61,327,937

110T LIOdHY TVANNY
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ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

12 SHAREHOLDERS'CAPITAL

Authorised Capital 10,000,000 Equity Shares of Nu. 100/ - each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:-
2,400,000 Equity Shares of Nu. 100/-each fully paid up.

13 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
A General Administration

As per last Account
Less: provision for dividend
Less:Adjustment of previous year depreciation
Less: Adjustment of Revenue during the year for General Administration
Add: Prior Period Adjustment on Land Transaction

TOTAL RESERVES AND SURPLUS FOR GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
B General Insurance

Catastrophe Fund
As per Last Account
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account during the year

General Reserve
As per Last Account
Add: Transfer from Revenue Account

Technical Reserve
As per Last Account
Add: During the year

TOTAL RESERVES AND SURPLUS FOR GENERAL INSURANCE

C Credit & Investment Department

As per last Account
Add:- Transfer from Revenue Account

General Provision

TOTAL RESERVES AND SURPLUS FOR CID

A General Administration

B General Insurance Department

C Credit & Investment Department
TOTAL OF RESERVES AND SURPLUS

14 INSURANCE FUNDS
A Life Insurance Business Account

B Group Insurance Business Account

Group Savings Insurance Business Account

C Fire Insurance Business Account

Miscellaneous Insurance Business Account
Marine Insurance Business Account

40

2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
240,000,000 240,000,000
240,000,000 240,000,000
(313,598,505) (238,289,100)
(72,000,000) (60,000,000
(15,565,430) -
(18,618,233) (18,063,844)
- 2,754,439
(419,782,168) (313,598,505)
75,000,000 70,000,000
5,000,000 5,000,000
80,000,000 75,000,000
454,506,082 354,337,577
125,336,273 100,168,505
579,842,355 454,506,082
35,933,729 26,933,729
10,000,000 9,000,000
45,933,729 35,933,729
705,776,083 565,439,811
416,518,423 293,488,140
203,934,777 123,030,283
620,453,201 416,518,423
76,068,359 66,060,079
696,521,560 482,578,503
(419,782,168) (313,598,505)
705,776,083 565,439,811
696,521,560 482,578,503
982,515,475 734,419,811
654,272,648 472,445,540
43,467,381 35,718,204
529,493,762 462,717,088
572,961,143 498,435,292
58,516,462 30,445,459
132,338,601 81,525,638
1,875,666 1,550,867
192,730,729 113,521,964
1,419,964,520 1,084,402,796




15A INVESTMENT AND BORROWING FUNDS

INVESTMENT FUNDS

A Life Insurance Fund

B Group saving Insurance Fund
C General Insurance Fund

D General Administration Fund

15B BORROWING FUNDS

16

17

18

A Private Provident Fund

B National Pension & Provident Fund
C Bond Series [ & 11

D Short Term Borrowings

TOTAL (15A+15B+15C)

SUNDRY CREDITORS

A Life Insurance Department
Bonus Payable
Provision on policy Loans
Agent Liability
Others
Deposit

Internal Department Adjustment

B Group Insurance Department
Deposit
Internal Department Adjustment

C General Insurance Department
Rural claim payable
Agent Liability
Others
Deposit

Internal Department Adjustment

D Credit & Investment Department
Interest on Investment Fund payable
“Interest payable on Bond Series-I & I1
Others

Internal Department Adjustment

E General Administration Department
Tax Payable
Others
Internal Department Adjustment

DUE ON REINSURANCE AND INSURANCE BUSINESS.
A Life Insurance Department (Note 23(b) (i) on Schedule 21)

B General Insurance Department

OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LESS REINSURANCE

A Life Insurance Department
B Group Insurance Department
C General Insurance Department
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2011 2010
Nu. Nu,

643,379,999 444,356,677
524,759,893 448,046,496
852,069,448 622,220,732
(292,380,968) (162,665,023)
1,727,828,372 1,351,958,882
412,565,523 308,261,549
638,000,000 661,000,000
1,999,970,000 1,999,980,000
500,000,000 300,000,000
3,550,535,523 3,269,241,549
5,278,363,895 4,621,200,431
19,394,539 11,389,572
6,440,425 3,329,063
5,407,226 4,799,444
3,593,040 2,642,734
34,835,230 22,160,813
34,835,230 22,160,813
594,190 395,802
594,190 395,802
633,485 368,954
38,235,771 10,784,388
12,393,500 9,583,798
51,262,756 20,737,140
51,262,756 20,737,140
152,554,017 124,516,973
67,056,967 64,037,141
39,240,995 70,056,741
258,851,979 258,610,855
258,851,979 258,610,855
13,382,689 12,265,809
13,382,689 12,265,809
358,926,844 314,170,419
3,049,239 854,900
3,049,239 854,900
2,914,163 2,725,943
900,000 2,100,000
5,752,814 36,675,590
9,666,977 41,501,533
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

SCHEDUE - 20

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T
DECEMBER 2011

1. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, on

the accrual basis of accounting excepting in few cases and in accordance with

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

2. Revenue Recognition

()

(vii)

(viii)

Items of income and expenditure are accounted on accrual basis, unless
otherwise stated.

Premiums are recognized as income, as and when due / received on
assumption of risk.

Reinsurance premium ceded is accounted at the time of recognition of
premium income in accordance with the treaty or in-principle
arrangement with the re-insurers.

Interest income from Loans and Advances are recognized as per the
Prudential Regulations of Royal Monetary Authority of Bhutan.

Dividend and Rental income are recognized, as and when received.
Interest on policy loan is accounted for on accrual basis.

Bonus to employees and Leave Encashment benefit is accounted for on
payment basis.

Acquisition Cost, Product Development and Launching Expenses etc are

accounted on Cash basis.

3. Benefits Paid (including claims)

(i)

Benefits Paid/Claims costs consist of the policy benefit amounts and claim

settlement costs, where ever applicable.
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the intimation of death has been received up to 31st December. Additional
provisions are also made as considered necessary by the management.

(iii) Repudiated claims disputed before judicial authorities are provided based
on management prudence, considering the facts and evidences available
in respect of such claims.

(iv)  Salvage recoveries are accounted for on realization basis.

(v)  Reinsurance Recoveries, when applicable, are accounted in the same

period.

4. Investments

Investments are stated at cost. Provision is made for diminution, other than
temporary, in the value of investments at amounts, as considered appropriate by
the management. Year-end market values based on last traded price of quoted

equity investments are also disclosed.

5. Fixed Assets

(i) Fixed Assets are stated at cost less depreciation.

(i)  Depreciation is calculated as per the applicable provisions of Income Tax
Act of Bhutan 2001, as amended to-date on straight-line basis at the
prevailing rates and in the manner as prescribed. The written down values

as on 1¢t January 1992 are considered as cost for application of straight-line

method.

6. Retirement/Employee Benefits
(i) Gratuity is administered through trust. Liability for gratuity to employees
is provided on accrual basis, as determined upon actuarial valuation at the
year-end.

(ii) Contributions to Provident Fund and other funds are accounted for, as an

when accrued.
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7.

10.

11.

Risk Reserves

Reserves for un-expired risks are created in Revenue Accounts in respect of
General Insurance Business at 60% of the net premium income for the year.
Reinsurance reserves are created on the basis of respective treaty arrangements

with various agencies outside Bhutan.

Liability for Life policies

The policyholders’ liabilities are determined by the Corporation’s appointed
actuary pursuant to his annual investigation of the Corporation’s Life and Group
Insurance business of the immediate previous year. The insurer’s appointed
actuary has adopts appropriate valuation assumptions after taking into
consideration the various relevant factors like interest, mortality, morbidity,

expenses, inflation, commission, lapses and future bonuses.

Foreign Currency Transaction
All Assets and Liabilities in foreign currencies are converted at the rate of
exchange prevailing as on the Balance Sheet date. The exchange gain /loss

arising there from are transferred to the relevant Revenue Account.

Loan Asset Classification and Provisioning for Non- performing Assets

)] Loans are stated at historical cost, subject to provisions.

(i)  Loans are classified based on record of recovery as standard, watch, sub-
standard, doubtful and loss assets, as per the guidelines issued by Royal
Monetary Authority of Bhutan.

(i) Provisions against loans are made as per the guidelines issued by Royal

Monetary Authority of Bhutan.

Returns from Foreign Treaty Companies

Returns to the extent received up to 3st December from various foreign treaty

110T LIOdHY TVANNY
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12. General

Premium rates on policies under the Life Insurance are charged at Corporation’s

table of rates based on actuarial calculations and on the General Insurance

Business at Corporation’s tariff based on the rates on the approval accorded by

the Board of Directors.

(i) Total expenses of branches and common allocable management expenses
are allocated and charged on the basis as decided by the management.

(i) ~Management expenses and interest earned from investment related to
General Insurance business are apportioned among the various types of
business on the basis of respective gross premium.

(iv) Interest on saving portion of General Insurance Scheme 1987 is credited to
individual member’s account @ 7.5% p.a. on accrual basis. |

(v)  Transfers to Catastrophe Fund are made as per the amount decided by the

management from time to time.

13. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Example of the estimates include
future obligation under employee benefits plans, whereever applicable, useful
lives of fixed assets and valuation in respect of life polices. The estimates and
assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as on the date
of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revisions to accounting estimates are recognized accordingly in current and

future periods.

14, Provision for Income Tax.




15. Provisions and Contingencies.
The Company creates a provision for litigation, assessment, fines, penalties,
claims, including insurance claims, etc., when there is present obligation as a
result of the past events that probably requires an outflow of resources and a
reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources,
considering the circumstances existing as on the date of the financial statements.
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the

likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

=2

Chief Exe¢utive Officer ChAdirman Director

However, contingent assets are not recognized in the accounts.

Genergl Mgnage
(F&R) |

Place: Thimphu
Date: 06/03 o1
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
SCHEDULE - 21

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2011
1.

Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited (RICBL), hereinafter referred to
as “Corporation”, erstwhile Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan (RICB)
originally incorporated under the Royal Charter in 1975, was subsequently
registered in the year 1991 under the Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan
1989. The Royal Government has since enacted Financial Institutions Act in 1992
and pursuant to Part II of the said Act; Corporation was licensed as a Financial
Institution by the Royal Monetary Authority of Bhutan in the year 1994
specifying the areas of its activities. The Corporation has changed its name from
RICB to RICBL, by virtue of amendments made in its Articles of incorporation
duly endorsed by the Registrar of Companies with effect from the year 2004.

The financial statements for the year have been drawn up in accordance with the
prescribed formats of Royal Monetary Authority of Bhutan and the Companies
Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan 2000, as far as practicable. Consolidations of
Balance Sheets of General Insurance, Life Insurance, Group Insurance Scheme
and Credit & Investment Business have been done after netting the inter -
departmental investments.

For the purpose of compliance of Prudential Regulations of Royal Monetary
Authority of Bhutan effective from the year 2002, un-recovered portion of
interest aggregating Nu. 20.49 million (Previous Year Nu. 23.64 million) on
account of advances on amounting to Nu. 207.84 million (Previous Year Nu.
324.32 million), which are classified as non-performing assets, has not reckoned
as income.

Provision for possible loss against loans and advances aggregating to Nu. 185.52

million (Previous Year Nu. 174.54 million) has been retained in these accounts in
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accordance with the Prudential Regulations of the Royal Monetary Authority of

Bhutan, 2002 on the basis of such considerations which management considered

to be prudent and appropriate. The said provisions both Specific and General are

net of adjustments on account of write back in respect of Specific Provision

amounting to Nu. Nil (Previous Year Nu. 27.23 million), which has been duly

reflected in the Investment Revenue Account.

(@)

(b)

(d)

The overall Capital Adequacy Ratio as at 31st December, 2011 is 17.20%
(Previous Year 16.44%) and the Core Capital adequacy Ratio as on that
date comes to 16.13% (Previous Year 15.32%) against at least 8% and 4%
respectively, as laid down in the Prudential Regulations of Royal
Monetary Authority of Bhutan.

The total exposure to a single borrower as at 31t December, 2011
amounted to 9.65% (Previous Year 18.6%) of Capital Funds, as compared
to 30% limit prescribed by Prudential Regulations of Royal Monetary
Authority of Bhutan.

The total ten large advances extended as at 31t December, 2011
aggregated to 11.16% (Previous Year 12.07%) of total advances as against
30% maximum limit laid down in the Prudential Regulation of Royal
Monetary Authority of Bhutan.

The liquidity ratio as at 31st December 2011 is 17.65% (Previous Year
15.06%) as against 10% minimum, as prescribed in Prudential Regulations
of Royal Monetary Authority of Bhutan.

The ratio of total large loans to capital fund comes to 308.62% as on 31st
December 2011 (Previous Year 161.19%) as against maximum 800% limit

laid down in Prudential Regulation of Royal Monetary Authority of
Bhutan.

The mode of calculation of interest on loans was revised as per Royal Monetary
Authority of Bhutan Circular Nos. FISD/03/96/648 & 649 of September 1996.
Accordingly, the total outstanding amount as at 30t September 1996 is treated as

49

110T LIOdHY TVANNY

"ALTNVLNHE 40 NOLLVIOd 0D HONVINSNI TVAOY



ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

10.

opening principal balance as at 15t October 1996 for calculation of interest on

simple daily product method. Interest is charged on the principal balance

outstanding at the rates declared by the Board of Directors from time to time.

The Corporation centrally manages through its Credit & Investment Department,

the investible/borrowed funds comprising of Banking and Non-Banking

borrowings, Private Sector Provident Fund, Group Insurance-cum-Savings Fund

and Insurance Funds. Interests/returns on such funds are credited to the

respective entities/departments at the rates decided by the management from

time to time /contractual obligation.

Contingent liabilities not provided for (as certified by the management) :

(@)  Certain claims in respect of General Insurance business (including third
party claims on motor car accidents) Nu.5.7 million (Previous Year Nu.
36.67 million)

(b)  Outstanding Guarantees given on behalf of various parties - Nu.
979.41million (Previous Year Nu 612.53 million)

(c) Commitments :
The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital
accounts (net of advances) is Nu.18.73 million (Previous Year Nu. 5.31
million).

Provision @ 30% on book profit is made in these accounts towards Corporate

Income Tax for the year 2011 amounting to Nu. 135.28 million (Previous Year

Nu.90.06 million). Advance Income Tax paid during the year is Nu. 31 million

(Previous year Nu 25 million).

Reserves for un-expired risks amounting to Nu.192.73 million (Previous Year

Nu. 113.52 million) created in the Revenue Accounts in respect of General

Insurance business at 60% (Previous Year 60%) of the net premium income

during the year which have been duly reflected as General Insurance Funds in

the Balance sheet.
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11.

12.

13.

14,

During the year, Nu. 5.00 million (Previous Year Nu. 5.00 million) has been

appropriated from the Profit and Loss Account towards Catastrophe Fund.

(@ In 2007 a fraud amounting to Nu 14.47 million has been reported at
Gelephu Branch Office in the Credit & Investment Department. The
matter is lying before appropriate Court of Law. Necessary provisions
have been made in the accounts in this respect.

(b) In 2009, a fraud amount of Nu. 11.26 million has been reported at
Thimphu Regional Bank Account No. 292 The matter is lying before
appropriate Court of Law. Necessary provisions have been made in the
accounts in this respect.

(©) In 2009, there was a burglary case at Paro Branch office and the office safe
has been stolen containing the Cash Nu. 0.30 million, blank cheque books
and digital camera. The case is still pending with the Royal Bhutan Police
as no one could be held responsible. Accordingly, in reference to this case
amount aggregated to the extent of Nu. 0.30 million had been already
provided in the accounts.

(d) In 2011 a fraud amounting to Nu 1.61 million has been reported at Head
Office Thimphu, in the General Insurance Department. The matter is
investigated by the police authorities. Appropriate provisions will be
created in due course of time.

Certain Assets are acquired in satisfaction of loans including interest due thereon

amounting to Nu. 57.07 million (Previous Year Nu. 56.08 million) consequent to

decrees obtained and surrender of properties by the borrowers, which has been
reckoned in these accounts.

Year-end gratuity liability as on 31st December, 2011 as been ascertained as per

actuarial valuation was Nu. 20.76million, which has been provided (Previous

Year Nu. 24.49 million).
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Provision for bonus payable to employees for the current year has neither been
ascertained nor been provided for in these accounts. An amount of Nu. 14.65
million paid for the year 2010 (Previous Year 10.56 million).

Sundry Creditors include -

(a) Provision for bonus payable to Life policyholders has been ascertained as per
Actuarial Valuation amounting to Nu.11.13 million (Previous Year Nu. Nil).

(b) Unadjusted deposits in respect of General and Life/ Group Insurance policies
aggregating to Nu. Nil (Previous Year Nu. Nil) and Nu.1.79 million (Previous
Year Nu. 1.29 million) respectively are outstanding on account of
reconciliation process, against which eventual adjustments thereof are not
ascertainable at this stage.

Fixed Assets (Schedule 11) -

(a) Physical verification of the fixed assets has been partially carried out by the
management during the year. This will be done in a phased manner.

(b) Codification of moveable fixed assets and incorporation of locational details
in the Fixed Asset Register of the Corporation has been initiated by the
management in order to maintain a proper Fixed Assets Register.

(c) Land represents freehold land.

(d) Building represents freehold permanent structures and depreciated as per the
applicable rates provided by the Income Tax Act.

(e) Depreciation was underprovided on Electrical Installations up to 2008
amounting to Nu.20.65 million. During the year Nu. 15.56 million has been
provided being the residual value of the asset under this category.

Capital Work-in-Progress includes expenses incurred in connection with the

software development amounting to Nu. 10.35 million (Previous Year Nu. 1.24

million).

The assets of the Corporation in Bhutan are free from all encumbrances, except

otherwise stated. The Corporation does not have any assets outside Bhutan
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20.

21.

22.

except maintenance of certain bank accounts with the banks located outside

Bhutan.

There are no loan assets, (Standard, Watch, Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss),

which are subject to restructuring/re-scheduling as at the Balance Sheet date.

Actuarial Valuation of Life and Group Insurance

(a) The Corporation’s appointed Actuary has carried out the annual actuarial
valuation of the Life and Group Insurance policies, on the basis of the final
audited accounts for the year 2010. The valuation assumptions (interest
factor, mortality, morbidity, expenses, commission, bonus etc.) conform with
the professional guidance notes issued by the Actuarial Society of India (ASI)
and accordingly vested bonus amounting to Nu. 11.13 million (Previous Year
Nu. Nil) has been accounted for. An amount of Nu.3.05 million (Previous
year Nu. 1.68 million) has been paid to the policy holders whose policies
matured during the year.

(b) Valuation surplus and bonus payable to the policy holders based on the
current year’s accounts have neither been actuarially ascertained, nor been
accounted for.

Re-insurance:

(@)  Life Policies

The ceding of the re-insurance in respect of certain policies (for both new
and renewal) are outstanding for the year 2011 estimated to Nu. 0.69
million (Previous year Nu. Nil)

(b)  Non-Life Policies

(i) The balances outstanding, both debits and credits, as at the Balance Sheet
date to/from various re-insurers aggregating to Nu. 61.63 (Previous Year
Nu. 22,98 million and Nu 3.04 million (Previous Year Nu. 0.85 million )
respectively are pending final reconciliation process/confirmation and

acceptance of the re-insurance. Any further adjustments thereof are not

ascertainable at this stage.
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(i)  The balances due to and from of reinsurers have been netted off from
accounts.

23.  Interest on borrowed funds of Credit & Investment Department is charged to

Investment Revenue account during the year at the following rates on simple

daily product method on the outstanding balances:-

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

Life Insurance Fund 7.00% p.a
General Insurance Fund 7.00% p.a
GAD Investment Fund 7.00% p.a
Group Insurance Fund 8.00% p.a
b) External funds / borrowings:-
Bank of Bhutan Limited 4.00% p.a
Bank of Bhutan Limited 7.00% p.a
Private Provident Fund 6.00% p.a
National Pension & Provident Fund 8.50% p.a
National Pension & Provident Fund 7.75% p.a
National Pension & Provident Fund 6.50% p.a
Bond Series I 7.00% p.a
Bond Series II 6.70% p.a
24.  The common management expenses are allocated to different Revenue accounts
during the year in the following proportion as decided by the management:-

Life Insurance Revenue 20%

GIS Insurance Revenue 15%

General Insurance Revenue 35%

Investment Revenue 30%

25.  Management expenses include -

a) Internal funds:-

(a) Managerial Remuneration paid/payable to the Managing Directors (Chief

Executive Officers) :

- Remuneration:
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26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

- Other Benefits: Nu. 0.67 million (Previous Year Nu. 0.68 million)
(b)  Directors’ Sitting fees: Nu. 0.55 million (Previous Year Nu. 0.40 million)
(c)  Audit fee payable: Nu. 0.13 million (Previous Year Nu. 0.13 million)
and provision for audit expenses Nu. 0.57 million (Previous Year Nu. 0.48
million)
Security details of the borrowings-
(a) National Pension and Provident Fund: Secured by fixed assets, both movable
and non-movables and pledge of equity investments.
(b) Bank of Bhutan Limited: Secured by fixed assets, both movable and non-
movables and Book debts. '
(c) Bond Series I & II: Secured by only Book Debts.
The Corporation has absorbed the emoluments paid/payable to the brokers

amounting to Nu. 0.30 million (Previous Year Nu. 0.27 million), being the

- proportion of expenses attributable to RICB Securities Ltd., the wholly owned

subsidiary of the Corporation, in view of the liquidity crisis forced by them.
Premium Deficiency has not been created since, in the opinion of the
management, the expected claim costs along with the related expenses and

maintenance cost of the insurance products in force would not exceed the related

-Reserve for Unexpired Risks. Further, during the year Nu.10.00 million (Previous

year Nu. 9.00 million) has been transferred to the technical reserves to meet any

unforeseen events refer Schedule 13 (b).
In the opinion of the management, acquisition costs for the new and renewal
long duration insurance and reinsurance contracts have been expensed out, as

and when incurred and not deferred, since the same do not vary materially in a

constant relationship to premium or insurance in force or are level or recurring in

nature.
In the opinion of management, there is no impairment of fixed assets of the

Corporation, which may require any adjustment to be made.
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31.

32.

Difference in current account maintained between RICB Securities Ltd and
RICBL amounting to Nu.1.74 million (Previous Year Nu. 2.35) is in the process of
reconciliation. Any effect in these accounts can be ascertained only upon
completion of reconciliation.

Figures of financial statements of previous year have been regrouped /

rearranged wherever necessary.

Signatures to Schedules 1 to 32

B‘f\_v
Chief Exectdive Officer /C%\MIA Director

56



PHONE :2248-1726, 2230-7281
W . & (% FAX  :91-33-2230 7281
e ' CABLE ‘BESTADVICE

E-mail :snmukherji@vsnl.net
NTANTS .
CHARTERED ACCOU snm_calcutta@hotmail.com

1B, Old Fool QWace Street
Gabowlla 700 001

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors.

Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited
Thimphu
Bhutan

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of PRIVATE PROVIDENT FUND (Fund),
as at 31t December 2011 and the related Revenue Account of the Fund for the year
ended on that date. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.
An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Further, to our comments in the annexure as referred above, we report that:

(2) Our examination was made in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
standards and accordingly included such tests of accounting records and such

other auditing procedures, as we considered appropriate for the purpose of our
audit.

(b) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(c) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept
by the Fund, so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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S. N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(d) The Balance Sheet and Revenue Account dealt with in this report are in
agreement with the books of account and have been compiled on the basis of
generally accepted accounting principles.

4. Nu. 2.00 million accepted by the Fund from a Company in earlier years, which is beyond the
object of the Fund, continues to remain in the books and has not been refunded. (Refer Note no.4
of schedule 9)

5. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, subject to para 4 above, the said accounts give a true and fair view;

i) In the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Fund as at 31st
December 2011 and
if) In the case of Revenue account, of the Income and Expenditure of the Fund

for the year ended on that date.

Place: Thimphu For S.N. Mukherji& Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: ©6 /0 7—/62 (TP Firm's Registration No. 301079E

Sudip‘K’ Mukherji
Partner

Membership No.13321
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

PRIVATE PROVIDENT FUND

THIMPHU BHUTAN
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" DECEMBER 2011
As at As at

Schedule 31st December,2011 31st December,2010
LIABILITIES Nu. Nu.
Employees' & Employers' Contribution 1 371,051,269 274,023,053
Interest Credited to Employees' Account 2 68,011,236 53,121,981
General Reserve 3 260,289 260,289
Other Liabilities 4 37,716 34,890
TOTAL 439,360,511 327,440,213
ASSETS
Deposit with RICBL 5 412,565,523 308,261,549
Cash and Bank Balances 6 4,628,234 1,785,652
Other Assets 7 22,166,754 17,393,012
TOTAL 439,360,511 327,440,213
Significant Accounting Policies 8
Notes on Accounts 9

The schedules referred to herein above form an integral part of the Balance Sheg
This is the Balance Sheet referred ‘

to in our report of even date.

For S.IN Mukhetji & Co.
Chartered Accountants  (Finan
Firm$ Registration No. 301079E

Generpl Manager Chie eutive

/& Accounts) Officer

Aairman

—~

AN \
(Sudip K~ Mukherji) ‘

Partner
Membership No. 13321
Place : Thimphu

Date: @6 JoFlacia
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED (RICBL)
PRIVATE PROVIDENT FUND

THIMPHU BHUTAN
REVENUE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" DECEMBER 2011
For the Year For the Year
ended ended
2i
Schedule 31st December, 2011 31st December,2010
Nu. Nu.
INCOME
Return on Deposits 22,166,754 17,393,012
22,166,754 17,393,012
EXPENSES
Return on Employees' Contribution 11,124,052 8,723,399
Return on Employers' Contribution 11,042,702 8,669,613
22,166,754 17,393,012
Significant Accounting Policies 8
Notes on Accounts 9

The schedules referred to herein above form an integral part of the Revenue Account.
This is the Revenue Account
referred to in our report of even date. On behalf of Private Provident Fund.

4

For S.N. Mukhetji & Co. Gendrgd Manager  Chief Exedltive
Chartered Accountants (Finang# & Accounts) fficer
Firtp Registration No. 301079E

% \ ~
(Sudip K¢ Mukherji) w“
Partner
Membership No. 13321
Place : Thimphu

Date : 06/0?’301&
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD
PRIVATE PROVIDENT FUND

THIMPHU BHUTAN
SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

EMPOLYEES' AND EMPLOYERS' CONTRIBUTION

SCHEDULE 1
EMPLOYEES' EMPLOYEES'
CONTRIBUTION EMPLOYERS' CONTRIBUTION EMPLOYERS'
31st December, CONTRIBUTION 31st 31st December, CONTRIBUTION
2011 December, 2011 2010 31st Decembert, 2010
NU NU NU NU
As per last Account 137,625,417 136,397,636 110,565,131 110,557,933
Add: Contribution
during the year 71,301,670 71,085,670 45,867,853 44,641,941
208,927,087 207,483,306 156,432,984 155,199,874
Less: Refund during
the year 22,799,437 22,559,687 18,807,567 18,802,238
TOTAL 186,127,650 184,923,619 137,625,417 136,397,636
GRAND TOTAL 371,051,269 274,023,053
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD

PRIVATE PROVIDENT FUND
THIMPHU BHUTAN

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE 2

INTEREST ON EMPOLYEES' AND EMPLOYERS' CONTRIBUTION

As per last Account

Add: conttibution
during the year

Less: Refund duting the

year
TOTAL

GRAND TOTAL

EMPLOYEES' EMPLOYERS' EMPLOYEES' EMPLOYERS'
CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION
31st December, 2011 31st December, 2011 31st December, 2010  31st December, 2010

NU NU NU NU
26,592,712 26,529,268 21,969,250 21,958,984
11,124,052 11,042,702 8,723,399 8,669,613
37,716,764 37,571,970 30,692,649 30,628,597
3,642,038 3,635,460 4,099,937 4,099,328
34,074,726 33,936,510 26,592,712 26,529,269
68,011,236 53,121,981
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED
PRIVATE PROVIDENT FUND

THIMPHU BHUTAN
SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
As at As at
31st December, 31st December,
2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
SCHEDULE - 3
GENERAL RESERVE
As per last Account 260,289 260,289
TOTAL 260,289 260,289
SCHEDULE - 4
OTHER LIABILITIES
Stale Cheques 18,325 18,325
Excess Contribution Refundable 19,391 16,565
TOTAL 37,716 34,890
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

PRIVATE PROVIDENT FUND
THIMPHU BHUTAN

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE -5
DEPOSIT WITH RICBL

As per last Account

Add: Addition during the Year (Net)

SCHEDULE - 6
BANK BALANCES

Bank Balances
In cutrent Accounts (Bank of Bhutan)

SCHEDULE -7
OTHER ASSETS
Receivable from RICBL (Interest Accrued)

As at As at
31st December, 31st December,
2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
308,261,549 233,067,489
104,303,974 75,194,060
TOTAL 412,565,523 308,261,549
4,628,234 1,785,652
TOTAL 4,628,234 1,785,652
22,166,754 17,393,012
TOTAL 22,166,754 17,393,012
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LIMITED

PRIVATE PROVIDENT FUND

THIMPHU BHUTAN
SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
SCHEDULE - 8
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1. The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions laid down in the Private
Provident Fund Scheme 1976 (PPFS) as amended/revised to-date and on the basis of the
individual Memorandum of Understanding drawn up between RICBL and the various private
companies and Non-Government Organizations.

2. Accounts are prepared on accrual basis except otherwise stated elsewhere.

3. Interest is credited to individual member’s accounts on the basis of fixed rate of returns mutually
agreed between the private companies and Non Government Organization and RICBL.

4. Employer’s contributions have been accounted for in the accounts on the basis of actual remittance
received as per the ‘recovery schedule” obtained up to 31t December 2011, from various Private

Companies and Non Government Organizations and refunds are made as per the intimation
record from them.

SCHEDULE -9
NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2011:

1. Consequent upon delinking of Government Employees Provident Fund with effect from 30 June, 2000,
Provident Fund Management for Private Companies and Non Government Organizations remained
with Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited (RICBL) as per the Government Directives, vide
Letter No. MOF/Pension/4841 dated 30% March 2000 and the letter dated 23t June 2000 from the
Ministry of Finance, Royal Government of Bhutan.

2. Management expenses for the current year are entirely borne by the RICBL.

3. Interest on Employees’ Contribution and the Employers’ contribution for the year ended 31st
December, 2010 have been accounted for @ 6% per annum on daily product basis.

4. Contribution includes Nu.2, 000,000(Net) as special contribution made by the Bhutan Board Products
Limited (Not Member of PPF) which is refundable to them.

5. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

Signatures to Schedules 1 to 9

é

Genera nager Chief Exeeutivé Officer
(Finance & /AAccounts)

Director

Place: Thimphu
Date: ¢ /0 7 JRO/R.

4
. - T,
"\r\E.«'\:V{,' o,

65

[10T LIOdHY TVANNY

"ALTNVLNHE 40 NOLLVIOd 0D HONVINSNI TVAOY



ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

RICB SECURITIES LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary Company of RICBL)
Directors’ Report of the year 2011

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Royal Securities Ltd, | have the
pleasure in presenting the 191 Annual report together with Audited

Accounts for the year ended 31t December, 2011.

Business Information
RICB Securities Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary Company of RICBL} was
established and registered on 15t May, 1993 under the Companies Act of
the Kingdom of Bhutan to carry on the business of a security Broker. The
Company was established as per Government directives, to promote
securities tfrading in the country.
The performance of the company for the last five years is presented
below:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Profit/ (loss) before tax 590,780 966,462 1,407,124 69,462 13,136

Performance Highlights

This year, in the secondary market, 8 listed companies securities were
traded with the lcrges:r being BNB followed by T Bank, DPNB, BIL, PCAL,
RICB, DWAL, & EBCC. In the primary Market bonus share issue were
executed related to JMCL, Druk Punjab National Bank bond Series-1 and
RGOB Treasury Bill on behalf of DPNB.

The details of the transactions are presented below:
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Primary Market Transaction

SL no. Code | Iltems Qyt (Buy) | Qty (Sell) Nu. (Buy) Nu. (Sell)
] JMCL Bonus Share 142,831 142,831 14,613,1001 14,613,100
2 DPNB | Govt. T/Bill 20,000 - 199,005,000 -
3 DPNB Bond Series - 1 144,000 144,000 144,000,000 144,000,000
Total 306,831 286,831 | 357,618,100 | 158,613,100
Secondary Market Transaction
Sl. No Company Buy (Qty) Sell (Qty) Buy (Nu.) Sell (Nu.)
| BIL 7,465 10,134 1,603,475 2,234,900
2 BNB 97,521 98,811 46,353,430 46,970,530
3 DPNB 20,212 19,679 6,981,635 6,802,690
4 DWAL 600 600 355,000 355,00
5 EBCC 486 - 145,800 -
é PCAL 4,830 3,625 4,012,500 3,002,750
7 RICB 1,700 2,100 695,500 875,500
8 TBL 47,699 49,795 12,443,175 12,957,025
TOTAL 180,513 184,744 72,590,515 73,198,395

Unlike in the previous year, transaction in primary capital market during

the current financial year declined. Except for IPO of T-Bank, Bonus share

issue of JIMCL & STCBL, & DPNB Bond series-1, there was no activity at all,

Some of the fransactions were executed by BOB Securities and BNB

Securities. Despite slow down in primary market business, the year has

recorded highest amount of tfrade in secondary market (weekly traded

stocks) for the company with 180,513 stocks being bought and 184,744
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

stocks sold contributing to over 80% of the income earned during the
year. Amongst other factors, the achievement is also attributed to
extensive marketing carried out by the employees this year. Clients
particularly appreciated door-step services offered by our brokers and
staff.

In terms of the volume of the transaction in the securities market, RICB
Securities Limited has carried out 60.7% of the weekly stock frading while
sharing only 5.51% of primary market business. BOB Securities has 86.77% of
primary market share as they have executed the only IPO of the year, i.e.
T Bank Ltd. Comparative analysis of the fransaction among the securities

Brokerage presented below:

Primary Market

Nu. In Million

Broker Bought Sold Total Yo
RICB 0.14 0.143 0.29 5.51
BOB 2.25 2.25 4.50 86.77
Drook 0] 0.00 0.00 0.00
BNB 0.20 0.20 0.40 7.71
Secondary Market

Nu. In Million
Broker Bought Sold Total Y%
RICB 72.60 73.21 145.81 60.70
BOB 1.63 3.30 4.93 2.05
Drook 3.14 2.19 5.33 2.22
BNB 42.49 41.64 84.13 35.02

It is important to note that the manifold increase in the volume of
secondary transactions over the previous year indicating a positive

growth in securifies business. Unlike primary market stocks whose
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availability in the market is chiefly determined by factors such as policy
and regulations governing the capital market, secondary stock trading is
purely based on market forces of demand and supply, and solvency and
purchasing power of investors which has seen an upward trend since 2011
being an excepftionally significant year. Further, another merit of
secondary stock trading is that it can be used as a milestone for setting
future business targets/projections because not only does it measures
market potential for the period but it also highlights scope and possibilities
for growth in the coming years. The same cannot be said for business
from primary market as IPOs and additional capital gearing by listed

companies varies from year to year and it's completely inconsistent.

The Board envisages that the Capital Market in Bhutan would become
more active in future with the government policy of private sector
development in the country and changes taking place in the financial
sector. With more industries coming up in the country, the Initial Public
Offers {IPO) is expected to increase, offering more business opportunities

to the brokerage firms in the country.

Conclusion
On behdalf o the Board and the management i wish to express my sincere
thanks to all our clients and staff who contributed in the growth of this
Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors.

Sd/ Sd/
(Namgyal Lhendup) (Pema Tshering)
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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PHONE : 2248-1726, 2230-7281
W ¢ & %,a FAX  :91-33-2230 7281
’ ’ : CABLE :BESTADVICE

E-mail :snmukherji@vsni.net
snm_calcutta@hotmail.com

1B, Old ok Wice Sreel
Gedeudla 700 001

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of RICB SECURITIES LIMITED.
Thimphu

Bhutan

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of RICB Securities Limited (the Company),
as at 31st December 2011 and the Profit & Loss account and the Cash Flow Statement of
the Company for the year ended on that date. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.
An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by section 75 of The Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000 read
with part II of Schedule XIV thereto (Minimum Audit Examination and Reporting
requirements), we enclose in the annexure a statement on the matters specified therein
to the extent applicable.

4. Further, to our comments in the annexure as referred above, we report that:

(a) Our examination was made in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
standards and accordingly included such tests of accounting records and such
other auditing procedures, as we considered appropriate for the purpose of our
audit.
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S. N. Mukheriji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(b) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(c) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept
by the Company, so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(d) The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with in
this report are in agreement with the books of account and have been compiled
on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles.

5. We draw your attention to the following;
(a) - Trading Fees have been accounted for on Cash basis instead of accrual basis.

(Refer note: 3 of Schedule 8)

(b)- Difference in Current Account with RICBL is Nu. 1,746,150, the effect of which may
only be ascertained after reconciliation. (Refer note : 4 of Schedule 8)

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and subject to para 5 of above, the said accounts give
the information required by The Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000,
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view:

i) In the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
315t December 2011.

if) In the case of Profit & Loss account, of the profit of the Company for
the year ended on that date; and

iii)  In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows during the year

ended on that date.
Place: Thimphu For S. N. Mukherji& Co.
Chartered Accountants
Date: 06/07 20/ Firn'd Registration No. 301079E
S
Partner
Membership No.13321
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ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

MINIMUM AUDIT EXAMINATION AND REPORTING REQUIREMENT
(Part-II of schedule XIV to The Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000)

ANNEXURE
[Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date]

1. The Company is maintaining records showing full particulars including
quantitative details of fixed assets. Situation of fixed assets and descriptions
thereof are maintained by Accounts department. As informed to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on the physical verification.

2, None of the Fixed Assets have been revalued during the year.

3. In our opinion, the internal control procedures of the Company to ensure
completeness, accuracy and reliability of accounting records, in carrying out
the business in orderly and efficient manner, to safeguard the assets of the
Company as well as to ensure adherence to the systems and procedures are
adequate.

4. The Company is regular in depositing rates and taxes and other statutory dues
with the appropriate authority.

5. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of rates and taxes and
statutory dues outstanding at the year-end.

6. During the course of our examination in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing principles we have not come across any personal expenses
have been debited to the Profit and Loss Account other than those payable
under contractual obligations/service rules of the Company.

7. The management of liquid resources particularly cash and bank needs close
monitoring considering the nature and size of the business since fund is lying

idle in non-interest bearing current account.
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10.

11.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of books and records on test check basis, the activities carried
out by the Company are in our opinion lawful and intravires to the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us the directives of the
Board have generally been complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the officials of the
Company have not transmitted any price sensitive information, which is not
made publicly available to their relatives/ friends/associates, or close
persons, which would directly or indirectly benefit themselves.

Proper records of the transactions and contracts have been maintained and
timely entries have been made therein for dealing and trading in shares,

securities and other investments.

Computerised accounting environment

The Company has a Computerized accounting system and the internal
control system seems to be adequate taking into account the size and nature
of its computer installations.

According to information and explanations provided to us, adequate safeguard
measures and back up facilities exist.

There is no system of off-site storage of files.

According to information and explanations provided to us, the operational controls
are adequate to ensure correctness and validity of input data and output
information.

According to information and explanations provided to us, the measures to prevent

unauthorized access over the computer installations and files are adequate.
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General
1. Going concern problems
Based on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31stDecember 2011 audited by us, the Company has earned sufficient profit
during the year under audit and we have no reason to believe that the

Company is not a going concern.

2. Ratio Analysis
The significant ratios indicating the financial health and profitability of the

Company are given below: -

Ratios 2011 | 2010 Remarks

Current Assets Liquidity position has
Current Ratio = 143 1.23 | improved.

Current Liabilities
Profit on Net profit after Tax Reflects  improvement in
Capital = 0.27 0.22 | profitability.
Employed Capital employed |
Profit on Net profit/ (loss)after Tax Reflects improvement in
Turnover = 0.80 0.26 | profitability.
Total Turnover

3. Compliance with The Companies Act of The Kingdom of Bhutan
The Company has generally complied with the Requirement of The
Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000. However requirements
under various provisions of The Financial Services Act of Bhutan 2011 are not
yet complied.

4. Adherence of Laws Rules & Regulations
Audit of the Corporation is governed by The Companies Act of the Kingdom
of Bhutan, 2000 and the scope of audit is limited to examination and reviews

of the financial statement as produced to us by the management. In the course
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of audit, we have considered the compliance of provision of the said
Companies Act and its Article of Incorporation. The Company does not have a
comprehensive Compliance Reporting and Recording System as regards adherence to
all laws, rules and regulations, systems, procedures and practices. Under the
circumstances we are unable to comment on the compliance of the same by the

Company during the year 2011.

Place: Thimphu For S. N. Mukherji& Co.
Chartered Accountants.
Date: 06 /0350 /2 Firps Registration No. 301079E
/é/ Eé‘h’}\ Sudip K. Mukherji
(};’»f _ ‘;;'\H Partner
i

Membership No0.13321
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. RICB SECURITIES LIMITED
[(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited (RICBL)]

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

2011 2010
Schedule Nu. Nu.
SOURCES OF FUND
Share Capital 1 500,000 500,000
Profit & Loss Account 1,950,798 1,282,234
: 2,450,798 1,782,234
APPLICATIONS OF FUND
Fixed Assets (Net Block) 2 17,945 22,115
Investment(At Cost)-Unquoted 500,000 500,000
5000 Equity shares of 100/ - each
Of Royal Securities Exchange of Bhutan Limited
Current Assets 3 6,400,657 6,851,147
Less:Current Liabilities and Provisions 4 4,467,805 5,591,028
Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) 1,932,853 1,260,119
TOTAL 2,450,798 1,782,234
Significant Accounting Policies 7
Notes on Accounts 8

The Schedules referred above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

This is the Balance Sheet
referred to in our report of
even date.

For S.N. Mukherji & Co. On behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

(;/'
\ ¢ - ’ :
e, | ,YV
(Sudip K. Mukherji) enerdl Chdirmdn
(F&A)

anager Chief Executive Directors

Partner Officer
Membership No. 13321

Place : Thimphu
Date: ©6 /07 J90/
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RICB SECURITIES LIMITED

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of RICBL)
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* DECEMBER 2011.
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2011 2010

Schedule Nu. Nu.
INCOME
Commission 695,534 272,448
Fees 117,000 1,225,000
Interest Income ) 19,006 335,866
Miscelleneous Income 6,054 63,211
TOTAL A 837,594 1,896,525
EXPENSES
Managerhent Expenses 5 181,644 306,678
Sittiing Fees for Directors & Invitees 61,000 78,000
Depreciation 6 4,170 4,170
Interest Paid - 541,215
TOTAL B 246,814 930,063
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (A-B) 590,780 966,462
Provision for Tax for Current Year 177,234 549,657
Excess Provision of Prior Period Written Back 255,018 20,711
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 668,564 396,094
Balance brought forward 1,282,234 886,140
Balance Carried over to Balance Sheet 1,950,798 1,282,234
Significant Accounting Policies 7
Notes on Accounts 8

The Schedules referred above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.

This is the Profit and Loss Account
referred to in our report of even date.

ForS.N. Mukherji & Co. On behalf of the Board ofRirectors

Charfered Accountants . W B

(Sudlp K. Mukherji) lMan ger Chief Execdtive Chﬁg Directojf/
Partner Officer

Membership No. 13321
Place : Thimphu

Date : 06/ 067 /.;Q!.&
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RICB SECURITIES LIMITED

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31* December 2011

2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities
Balanced transferred to Reserves & Surplus 1,950,798 1,282,234
Balance Brought Forward (1,282,234) (886,140)
Depreciation charges 4,170 4,170
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 16,383 (11,683)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liabilities (1,123,224) (1,111,547)
Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (434,107) (722,966)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents - Bank balances 6,834,764 7,557,730
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents - Bank balances 6,400,657 6,834,764

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the cash Cash Flow Statement

This is the Cash flow statement referred in our report
of even date

For S.N. Mukherji & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Sudip K. Mukherji) Generj]
Partner {FicA) Officer

Membership No. 13321

Place : Thimphu

Date: 05/07/&01;
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RICB Securities Limited

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited)

Notes to Cash flow Statement for the year ended 31.12.2011

2011 2010

Nu. Nu.
1. Net Cash flow from Operating Activities
Balance transferred to Reserves & Surplus 1,950,798 1,282,234
Balance Brought Forward (1,282,234) (886,140)
Depreciation charges 4,170 4,170
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Assets 16,383 (11,683)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liabilities (1,123,224) (1,111,547)
Net cash flow from operating activities (434,107) (722,966)
For S.N. Mukherji & Co. On behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants .

\/\Nuu‘/

(Sudlp K. Mukherjl)
Partner

Membership No. 13321

Place : Thimphu

Date: 64/0% Joor

Officer
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RICB SECURITIES LIMITED
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of RICBL)

SCHEDULES ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T DECEMBER 2011

SCHEDULE-1

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised -

50,000 Equity Shares on Nu. 1,000/ -each

Issued ,Subscribed and paid up
5000 Equity Shares of Nu. 100/ each fully paid

(All the shares are held by Royal Insurance
Corporation of Bhutan Limited, the Holding
Corporation)

SCHEDULE - 2
FIXED ASSETS - At cost
Electrical Installation & Computers

Gross Block - As per last Account
Add: For the year

Less: Depreciation
As per Last Account
Add: For the year

Net Block

SCHEDULE -3

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash at Bank
In Current Accounts
Interest Receivable
Advance Tax Paid

Fixed Deposit

OTHERS
Tax Deducted at Source
- Refundable

Total
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2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
50,000,000 50,000,000
500,000 500,000
212,042 212,042
212,042 212,042
189,927 185,757
4,170 4,170
194,097 189,927
17,945 22,115
5,301,418 5,834,764
17,742 -
80,234
1,001,264 1,000,000
6,400,657 6,834,764
- 16,383
- 16,383
6,400,657 6,851,147




RICB SECURITIES LIMITED
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of RICBL)
SCHEDULES ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2011

SCHEDULE - 4

CURRENT LIABILITTES AND PROVISIONS

A.Current Liabilities
Temporary Overdraft
Client Account
Corporate Tax Payable
Payable to RICBL
Stale Cheque

B.Provision for Income Tax

SCHEDULE- 5

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
Licence Fees/Rates & Taxes
Bank Charges
Printing & Stationery
Membership Fees
Miscellaneous Expenses
Trading Fees
Advertisement Expenses
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2011 2010
Nu. Nu.
- 50
8,300 1,750,163
- 300
4,183,271 3,290,858
99,000 -
177,234 549,657
4,467,805 5,591,028
4,100 4,000
540 4,515
- 4,450
75,000 78,000
- 57,074
102,004 115,642
- 42,998
181,644 306,679
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RICB SECURITIES LIMITED
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of RICBL )

STATEMENT OF ASSET AS ON 31T DECEMBER 2011

. .. Original
Date Original Addx'tlon cost ¢ as | Rateof
SL. Qty Particulars of Cost as| during on Deprecia -
No. on 1.1.2011 | the year .
Purchase (Nuw) (Nu.) 31.12.2011 tion
(Nu)
1 1 [PCAT COMPUTER WITH
PRINTER & UPS 01.10.1997 93,852.00 - 93,852.00 15%
2 1 |ACER POWER COMPUTER | 23.12.1999 76,890.00 - 76,890.00 15%
3 1 |ACP UPS 23.12.1999 10,500.00 - 10,500.00 15%
4 1 |[STABILISER 03.09.2002 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 15%
5 1 |DELL COMPUTER 20.08.2009 27,800.00 - 27,800.00 15%
212,042.00 - 212,042.00
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ANNUAL REPORT 2011

ROYAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF BHUTAN LTD.

RICB SECURITIES LIMITED
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of RICBL)

SCHEDULES ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2011

SCHEDULE -7

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

Basis of preparation: The accounts have been prepared on historical cost convention,
accrual concept and in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles.

Revenue Recognition : The Income and expenses are considered in the accounts on
accrual basis unless otherwise stated.

Investment : Investment made by the Company are stated at cost. Any permanent
dimunition in the value of investment are provided for.

Fixed Assets: Fixed Assets have been accounted for on the basis of historical cost or
capital grant wherever applicable for distinct assets. Depreciation is provided on straight

line method at the rates and manner prescribed by the Income Tax Act of the Kingdom of
Bhutan, 2001.

Provision for income tax is accounted for on book profit of the Company at the prevailing
rate as per Income Tax Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan,2001.

SCHEDULE - 8
NOTES FORMING THE PART OF ACCOUNTS

1

W N

Place:Thimphu
Date: 0 ¢ /o7 /20/2

Signatures to Schedules 1 to 8

Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited (the Holding Corporation), has not
charged the entire Brokers' salaries and others emoluments amounting to Nu. 301,187/ -
(previous year Nu. 265,966/ - incurred on behalf of the Company and has been borne by
them entirely.

Figures of the previous year have been regrouped /rearranged wherever necessary.
Trading Fees accounted for on Cash basis

There is a difference of Nu.1,746,150/- in Current Accounts maintained by Royal
Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limitedon behalf of RICB Securities Limited. This is
under process of reconciliation. Any effect in this account may be ascertained only after
reconciliation.
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